July 2nd, 2019

Notice Of Meeting

You are invited to attend the Audit Committee Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 3rd July
2019 at 2:00 pm in The Mourne Room (Downshire Civic Centre Downpatrick).

Councillor P Byrne
Councillor W Clarke
Councillor L Devlin
Councillor C Enright
Councillor M Gibbons
Councillor O Hanlon
Councillor H Harvey
Councillor A Lewis
Councillor G Sharvin

Councillor M Ruane



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Agenda

Introduction and Apologies
e Clir W Clarke
e ClIr C Enright

Delcarations of Interest.

Action Sheet - Audit Committee Meeting April 2019. (Copy
attached)

[ Action Sheet - Audit Cmttee April 2019.docx

To agree dates and start times for Audit Committee Meetings
2019-2020. (Copy attached)

[ Audit Cmttee Mtg Start Times.docx

Members Training. (Verbal update)

Annual Report 2018/19 from Independent Chairperson of Audit

Committee. (Copy attached)
[ Item 6 Rpt re AC Annual Report.docx

[ Item 6 AC Annual Report 2018-19.docx

Page 1

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Internal Audit (CLOSED SESSION)

7.0

ASM 4 Year Internal Audit Plan. (Copy attached)

This item is deemed to be restricted by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the Council holding that information) and the public may, by

resolution, be excluded during this item of business.

[ ltem 7 2019 to 2023 NMDDC Draft IA Strategy EXEMPT INFO.pdf Not included

Corporate Services

8.0

Presentation of the Financial Statements and AGS. (Copy
attached)

[ Item 8 Statement of Accounts 2018-19.ppt

Page 15



[l Item 8 SOA part one.pdf Page 28

[l Item 8 SAO part two.pdf Page 67

1 Item 8 SOA part three.pdf Page 78

[ Item 8 SOA part four.pdf Page 114
9.0 NMDDC Assurance Mapping and Code of Governance. (Copy

attached)

[ Item 9 Rpt re Assurance Framework and Code of Governance.docx Page 129

[ ftem 9 re AF-CoG.doc Page 131
10.0 Corporate Risk Register. (Copy attached)

[ Iltem 10 Rptre CRR - July 2019.docx Page 148

[ Iltem 10 Cor Risk Register.pdf Page 150

[ Iltem 10 CRR Summary Sheet - July 2019.xIsx Page 172
11.0 Fraud and Whistleblowing Update. (Copy attached)

[ Iltem 11 Rpt re Fraud and Whistleblowing.docx Page 174

[ Iltem 11 Summary Fraud and WB Register 2019-20.docx Page 176
12.0 Direct Award Contracts. (Copy attached)

[ Iltem 12 Rptre STA-DAC.docx Page 177

[ Iltem 12 STA report - 1st Quarter 2019-20.xIsx Page 179
13.0 Update re: Audit Recommendations. (Copy attached)

[ Item 13 Rptre Update on Audit Recommendations.docx Page 181

[ Item 13 Audit Follow Up Tracker - July 2019.xIsx Page 184

Performance

14.0 Performance Improvement Plan 2019-20. (Copy attached)

[ Item 14 re Performance Improvement Plan 2019-20.pdf Page 192



[ Item 14 Appendix 1 Performance Improvement Plan 2019-20 v2.pdf

Page 195

[ Item 14 Appendix 2 Consultation and Engagement Report 2019-20 v2.pdf Page 232
[ Item 14 Appendix 3 Draft Objective Delivery Plans 2019-20 v2.pdf Page 246
15.0 NIAO - Progress Report re: Proposals for Improvement .
(Copy attached)
[ ttem 15 Rptre Proposals for Inprovement 2018-19.pdf Page 272
[ Item 15 Appendix 1 Proposals for Inprovement Progress Report.pdf Page 275
NIAO
16.0 Local Government Audit Report 2019. (Copy attached)
[ ttem 16 Local Government Auditor's Report 2019.pdf Page 288
Circulars
17.0 LG 20/2019 - Addendum to Local Government Performance
Improvement Guidance. (Copy attached)
[ Item 17 Local Gov Performance Improvement Guidance.pdf Page 352
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

{held quarterly]
Date Time Location
3 July 2019 2.00 pm Downpatrick
23 September TBC Downpatrick
2019
9 January 202C TBC Downpatrick
23 April 2020 TBC Downpatrick

(NB: Start times will be agreed at AC Meeting 3 July 2019)



Report to:

Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 3 July 2019

Subject:

Audit Committee Annual Report 2018-19

Reporting Officer Dorinnia Carville, Director of Corporate Services

(Including Job Title):

Contact Officer Joe Cempbell, Independent Chair of Audit Committee

{Including Job Title):

Decisions required: Members are asked tc consider and approve the contents of this
repert prior to reporting to Council.

1.0 Purpose and Background:
The Annual Report summarises the key activities and highlighting any
key lssues arising rhraughout the year. This repart will inform the
Governance Statement contained within the Council’'s Annual Accounts.

2.0 Key issues:
The Annual Report of the Newry Mourne and Down Audit Committee for
2018-19
is attached.

3.0 Recommendations:

G & Members are asked to consider and aoprove the Annual Repcrt of the
Audit Committee 2018-18. &

- Tre approved Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2018-19 fo he
reparted to Council

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 None.

5.0 Equality and good relations implications:

8.3 Mone,

6.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 - Audit Committee Annual Report for 2018-19




Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Audit Committee

Annual Report for 2018/2019



1. Overview

This Annual Repert provides an averview of the Audit Committee activities for the Financizal
Year 2018/19 and demonstrates how the Committee has met its key responsibilities.

The Audit Committee met on five occasions during the year; four standard mestings on 5™

July 2018, 20" September 2018, 15" January 2019 and 15" April 2019 and a special meeting
on 15" February 2019. A programme of work has beer agreed by the Audit Committee and
is allocated over a schedule of four meetings during the year.

The role of the Audit Committee is to suoport the Chief Executive (Accounting Officer) and
Council by reviewing the comprehensiveness 2nd reliahility of assurznces on governance,
risk management, the control environment and the integrity of the financial statements.

2. Attendance

7.1 Mambers’ aftendance at committee meetings were as follows:

Audit Audit Audit Spec Audit Audit Totals

Cammittee | Committee | Committee | Committee Committee

05-Jul-18 20-Sep-18 | 15-Jan-19 | 15-Feb-19  15-Apr-19
Mr) Campbell |V v v v v | s/s
clir P Bryne v V v 3/8
Clir C Casey v V v V 4/5
Clir W Clarke v v Vv 3/5
Clir L Devlin v 1/5
Cllr M Murnin v v v V 4./5
Clir M Ruane v v v v v 5/8
Clir G Sharvin v 1/5
Clir J Tinnelly v W 2/5
Clir J Trainor v v 2/5

2.1 Mr loe Campbell was appointed as an Independent Member of the Audit Commities on
14" Septermber 2015 and in accordance with the Committee's terms of reference took up
Lhe rale of Chairperson, He slepped down on 15 April 2019 following Lthe end of his term.

2.2 The Audit Committee meetings requires the attendance of the Chief Cxecutive, the
Directar of Corporate Services and the Internal Auditors. The Audit Services Manager,
Assistant Director of Finance and NIAQ representatives also usually attend and the Szaior
Management Team and cther Senior Officers attend by invitation.



3. Performance Evaluation

2.1 In accordance with best practice, the Audit Committee self-assessed itz performance
against the National Audit Cffice Checklist for Audit Committees during the year and the
results were presented ta the meeting on 15" January 2019 and the Committee agreed the
following actions/recommendations to build effectiveness:

Principle 2; Skills

(a) Partics to be asked to give consideration to appointing Elected Members for a term
greater than one year where possikle to build up knowledge and skills

Principle 3 and 4: The role and scope of the Committee

{b) Review the Committee's tarms of reference in accordance with HMT Guidance
(¢) Bring a papor on Cyber Risk Management to a future meeting

{d) Bring a paper on Assurance Mapping to a future meeting

{e] Bring a paper cr the CIPFA Coce of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption to a future meeting

Principle 5: Communication and reporting
{f) To ensure Internal Audit reports are completed and timely reported to Audit Commitiee

(g) Officers te strive to ensure that all papers are provided on a timely basis to Democratic
Services so that papers are issued in compliance with standing orders so that Members have
adeguzte time to revisw.

Members can take reassurance from the number of good practice questions that have been
answered ‘ves' demonstrating that the Audil Commillee is following best practice and
aperating effectively.

3.2 An appralsal of the Chairperson performance was also completed by the Chief Executive
and Counciller Casey and was deemed satisfactory.

3.3 All actions arising frem the 2017/18 Self-Assessment were completed.

4. Terms of Reference

A review of the Audit Committee's Terms of Reference was undertaken and approved by
Ceouncil on 5" March 2019 as part of the review of the terms of referencas of all Committees

of Council. The Audit Comnmittee noted the approved Tarms of Reference at its meeting on
15" April 2019



5. 2017/18 Financial Statements and External Audit

The Council's Audited Financial Statements for 2017/18 including the Annual Governance
Statement were reviewed by the Audit Committee on 20" September 2018. The Committee
also reviewed the draft report to those charged wth governance.

The Audit Committee was pleased ta note that the Northern Ireland Audit Office (NIAQ) had
certified the financial Statements with an unqualified audit Opinion and the Audit

Committee approved the Accounts for signing within the statutory deadline of 30"
Septamber 2018.

The Audit Committee noted the contents of final repors: to those charged with governance
with management respenses and the Annual Audit Letter at its meeting on 15" January
2019.

6. Risk Management

The Committee welcomed the continued good progress made by Officers on Risk
Management and the structure put in place to ensure ownership and management of risk at
all levels of the organisation.

The Council has a Corporate Risk Register which identifies the key corporate level risks
faced, and to be managed. Each corporate risk is linked to specific prioridies set cut by the
Council in its Corporate Plan. The Corporate Risk Register and mitigating actions are
scrutinised at each Audit Committea meeting. Risk managemant is also a standing agenda
itern at monthly meetings of the SMT.

There were 11 corperate risks on the Corporate Risk Register at April 2019 and the
corporale risks with Lhe highest residual scores were as follows:

= CR. 05 - Failure to provide timely planning decisions (4 * 4 = 16)

= (CR.06 - IT Services do not support the Statutory, Strategic or Operational
requirements of Council (4 * 4 = 15)

= CR. 09 - Failure to implement an economic development programme to regenerate
the district and attract inward investment due to financial uncertaintias caused by
the current economic ard political climate (4 * 5= 20)

= (CR. 10 - Risk of industrial relations deteriorating as we go through a period of
change which could potentially lead to industrial action and 2 disrupbion to services
(4*4-146]

= (H.11 - Accidents/injuries may occur it health and safety of service users and staff is
not considered, with a particular focus on Fire Risk Assessments (5 3 =15)



7. Internal Audit

7.1 ASM Limited were appointad on 1% April 2015 as Internal Auditors for a pericd of 3
years. The Audit Committee on 8" Decemkber 2016 agreed to extend the contract with ASM
Limitec for the provision of the Courcil's internal audit services, for a further 1 year 1o 4
years via Direct Award Contract, subject to a satisfactory completion review at the end of
cach year. ASM were extended for 2018/12 which allowed for the completion of the 4 Year
Internal Audit Cycle.

7.2 The Internal Audit Plan for 2018/1% was delivered in full. ¢ Internal Audit Reports were
reported to the Audit Committee during the vear, 8 of which received a satisfactary
assurance rating. One service, Facilities Marzgement - Canteens received a limited
assurance rating. Members commended this excellent result.

7.3 The Internal Auditors also reported to a special meeting on 15" February 2019 their
findings in respect of the Council's procurement and erection of the Big 5creen in Newry and

highlighted the need to progress with those issues identified as key lessons to be learned.
7.4 Internal Audit Annual Assurance Opinion

The Committee raviewed the Annual Internal Audit Assurance Keport for 2018/19 at its
meeting on 15" April 2012 and noted the Auditor’s everall opinion that the Council's
systems in relztion to internal control, risk managemenrt and governance were in general
adeguzte and operated effectively and they ware able to provide satisfactory assurance in
relation to the effective and efficent achizvement of the Council's objectives.

The Audit Comm ttee welcomed the overall cpinion of Satisfactory Assurance and
commended Cfficers for their zood work. The Committee also requested regular progress
updates on the achions taken to address the significant issues referred to in Arnual Internzal
Audil Annual Assurance Report.

7.5 Follow up Review of Internal Audit Recommendaticns

The Committee also reviewed on 15" April 2019 a follow up repert from Internal Audit on
the Implementation of Prior Year Internal Audit Recornmendations for 2017/18,
Cisappointingly on'y 8 (17%) out of the 48 recommencations examined were fully
implemented, a further 21 {44%) were partially implemented, 17 (35%) werz not yet
implemented, 1(2%) no longer accepted and 1 (2%) unable Lo test implementation. The
Audit Services Manager will report on progress to the Audit Commitiee during 2019/20.

The Audit Services Manager also reported progress on the implementabicn of the 2015/14
and 2016/17 outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations during the year and at 31st
March 2018, 34 (81%) out of the 42 recornmendations examined were fully implemented
for 2017/18 32 (51%) out of the 63 recommendabions examined were fully implemented.



The Committee emphasised the importance of Officers continuing to give their full co-
aperation to Interna’ Audit work and to ensure recommendations to strengthen internal
controls were ‘mplementad in a timely fashian.

7.5 Tender tor Internal Audit Services

The current contract with ASM endad on 31" March 2015, The Council completad a public
tendering competition for the next Council term and ASM have been successful and
reappointed on a 4 year contract commencing 1* April 2019..

7.6 Approval of Internal Aucit Plan 2019/20 and Internal Audit Strategy

The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 and the Internal Audit Strategy for 2019/20 to
2022/23 will be brought to the Audit Committee meeting in July 2012 for approval.

8. External Audit Strategy

The NIAD presented their Annual Audit Strategy for the Year Ending 31 March 2019 to the
Audit Cammittee on 15" Aoril 2019. The Aud't Certification deadline for certifying local
government bodies’ Accounts is 30 September 2019 anc to ensure compliance a meeting of
the Audit Committee will be scheculed for 23" September 2019 to review and approve the
Audited accounts so they can be signed by the statutory deadline.

NIAO have identified two significant risks, Weaknesses in Procurement and Contract
Management and Weaknasses in Controls over the Completeness and Valuation of Fixed
Assets which they will review as part of their audit plan.

9. Performance Improvement Arrangements

The Audit Committee were presented with the Imorovement Audit anc Assessment Report
2018/19 by NIAQ at its meeting on 15" January 201¢ which audited the Council's
assessinent of ils performance for 2017/18 and its 2018719 improvement plan.

The Committee welcomed that the Councils Performance Improvemant and Assessment
Arrangements had heen certified with a standard unqualified opinion by the NIAC Audit
having discharged its performance and reporting duties under Part 12 of the Act and acted
in accordance with Lhe Guidance issued by Lthe Deoarlment for Commurilies,

Whilst the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee has responsibility for Performance
Improvement, MIAQ have also recommended that the Audit Committee track progress an
their implementation.



10. Acknowledgments

As this is my last Annual Report. | wish to extend my thanks to the Members for their
support during my time in office and to the political parties for ensuring continuity of
membership on the Committee from year to year. On behalf of the Audit Cornmittee | wish
also to thank cfficers, the Internal and External Auditors for their openness and engagement
with the Committee, thereby zllowing it to meet its respansihilities.

Finally, | welcome and extend my best wishes to Brona Slevin, the newly appointed
Indepandent Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Joe Camphell
Independent Chairperson
17 May 2012
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1. Accicents/injuries may cceurif haalth and safety of service users and saff is not
considered, with a focus on fire risk assessmenls.

12. If sickness absence is nof kept to a minimum. this may affect the dealivery of services,
statf morale and lead to increased costs

Conirols ara in place {o manage tha nsks were possible, and where actions have been
idenified to further mitigate the ris«, these are being progressed by members of the Senior
and Corporare Management Teams.



Financlal Stalemenls

The Ceurcil's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2019 5 as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Baernditure Statement and it's financicl pasiton is as set out in
the Balkonce Sheet and Cosa Flow Statement.

Thess financial stotements have baen prapared in line with the Cade of Proctice on Local
Autrarity Accouniing in the Lriled Kingdom for tha year endad 31st March 2019 (the Code|
and the Departmen® for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 12/2012, s the
purpcss of this fareword ta explain, in an eosily understancable way, the financial facts in
relation to the Council,

This Statement of Accounts explaing Mewry, Moume and Dowr District Coundil fincrces
during the financial year 2018/19 and ifs finarcial position al ike end of that year. |+ follows
approved accountng slandargs and is necessarily technical in ports.

Tne purpose ol the Narrative Repart is to provide information on the Council. its main
chjecotives and sfralegias and the rincipal risks it facas.

Group Accounts

The Code recuires Laocal Authorities to consider all their interests ond to preaare o fUll set of
grouo financial statements where they hava material intasrests ir subsidiaries, asscciores or
joint ventures. The Council does nat have marerial inlerasts in such bodies and accordingly is
not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Maovement in Reservas Statfement

This Starement, as set out on page 4C, shows the movement in the yecr aon the cifferert
reserves held by the Courcil, omalysed rto 'usable reserves [i.e, those that can oe gpplied
io fund expenditure of reduce rates) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or [cefcit) on the
pravision of tervices’ line shows the frue economic cost of providing the Council & services,
more delails of which are showr in the Comprehensive Income anc Expenditure Summary
[CIES).

The Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Stalement

This statemens, as set out on poage 39, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordancs with generally accepted cccounting practices, rather than the
amount 1o be funded fram rates income. Councils ralse rates income fo cover expencilure in
uccerdance wilh regulalions; tis rmay be different rom the accounting coast, The rales
income position is shown in the Movament in Reservas Sta-ement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet. a8 sat oul an page 41, shows the value as at the Balcnce shest dote of
the Council's assets ona habilifies. Ina net assets of the Councl (assets less liobilities) are
motched by tne reseves held by the Council. Reserves cre raporled r two calegories. The
first cotegory of reserves are usaole reserves, ie those reserves that the Councll may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves ard any
statutary limirgtions on their use (for example the Coagital Receipts Reserva that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The secand category of reserves are those
fhat the Council is not able 1o use To provida services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses [for example the Revaluation keserve], where
amounts would only become availakle to provide services if tho asscls are sold: erd resarves
that hold timng differerces shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement ling 'Adjustments
between accounting basis ond tunding basis under regu ations'.



The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows “he changes in cash and cash sguivalsnts of the Council
during the recorling period, The statement shows how the Council generales and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activitizs. Ine amount of net oosh tlows arising from aperating activities is a key rdicator of
the extert to which *he operations of the Council ore fundad by way of taxation and grant
income cr from the recipients of services providad by the Council. Investing activities
represent the exlert to which cash cutfiows have beern made for resources whicH are
in‘ended 1o conlribule fo the Council's future service delivery. Cash Tlows arising from
financing activities are wseful in predicting claims on fulure cash flows by providsrs of caoital
(.e. norawing) to the Council.

Basis of preparation

The Councils Sratement of Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended to
prasen’ to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2018-19 year. Thers are
strict conirols governing the cccounting standards that must be complisg with, occountng
policies must be apglied on ¢ consistent basis and officers must follow relevant accounting
cnd disclosure reqguirements.

There are also maleriality thresholds te be adhered to and officers cre obliged to make
judgements and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent and have erdeavours to ensure
that as much inlermaftion as possicle has been presented to moke the accounts user fiendy
w5 poss Dle within these lirmilalions,









Fart 12 of the Local Government Act (NI} 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement for
lecal government, whereby all district councils must put in place crrangements to secure
conlinuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. The Council is requred to set
annual improvement objeclives lcr ths services il provides and ‘o diso have in place
arrangements to achieve these objsctives. The Counci recognises 'improvement’ o mean
activity that enhances the sustainable qudlity of ife and environmant for ratepayers and
communitizs,

Tne Council has alse incorporated five ey improvement objectives o ensure confinuous
improvenent in the exercise of the Counci's functions. The impravement okjectives are
linked to the Community Plan, the Corporate Plan and Directoraie Business plers.

Below | have highlighted what the Councils five key performance objectives are, and the key
achievements Council have made since | Apnil 2017 to the 31 March 201%:

. Encourage healthy lifestyles through increased participation in leisure, sport and
recreational aclivities;

MNewry and Down Leisure Cenfres open and 'Be Active' campaign lounched;

Incregse in total numiber of attendancess across the sx leisure centres;

Average sat'sfaction rating of 73.5% across the six lesure facilities;

3 new play parks cpen, | pork transformed. and 13 porks upgraded;

Review of lesure facilities complete;

1.672 children took part in Community Play initialives;

Options to progress the development of o park in Newry City being considered; cnd

Multi-stakeholaer activity, Promotion anc Developneni Plan launder.,

2. Improve eccromic growth by crealing new business starts, supponing the growih of
existing businesses and promuafing Newry, Mourme and Down as a prermier fourisl
destinagtion;
w371 mew busiress starfs, ond 332 jobs oromoted Ihrough business sfarf=up aclivily;

City Dedl for Ihe Bellas! Reygion secured;

Carlingford Lough Gresmway between the Weir and Viclona Lock complets;

Developmen| of an Arls, Cullure and Heritoge Shrolegy Underway:

Destination Exgerierce Development Plan for the Moumes and Ring ol Gullicn and

the Moume Cogs! launched; und

» he Gianl Advenlure Feslivals athracted over £252,530 visitors and generatec an
estimated £7m for the local economy.

3. Deliver urban and rurd! regenerahon inifialives ihat will creale a Dislicl where people
wont to live, work and inves! in;

Waurrenpoint Municipal Paik restorec and re-opened:

Forkhill Greenspoce Polhwoy Project comp els;

Late nighl bus service from Neway to Crossmagler and Kilkesl pilofed:

Revilalisation schemes in Newry and Warrenpoint comolete

25 village plons updated, und 20 new Village pluns createc;

Mulliple initiotives lounched to improve digital connectivity: and

Consullalion on |he Preferred Oplions Paoer for lhe Local Development Pan

complete,

4. Ciedgle g cleaner, greener. more gliracrive Distict;

HMeighbourhood Service Working Group es ablished:

Decregse in Dlock bin waste ond Increase in Blue and brown bin waste:

Reducion in the amount of biodegradcble municipal waste sent to landill;
Increase in Ihe amount o hoJsehoid waste that s recycled: and

Over £52k awarded lo 25 enviionmental improvement projects through ‘Down your
streel - Live here, Love bera’.
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3. Ercovrage and empowerlocal communities to partcipate in Ceurcii engagement

structures and initiatives.

« Corporate Consultation and Engagement Strateqgy adopted:

=  Commun'ty and voluntary seclors cocupy 52% of places on community engagement
structures;

= Almost £3m awarded through the Fnancial Assistance Schame;
1500 visits to the Elthric Minority Supoort Centre ir Newry:
£10.5k awarded to commurily groups through ‘participatory budgeling'
programmas;
Ae Friendy status achieved from the World Hea'th Organisation; and
Youtn Council ergaged in the development of strategic plers.

An annual performance assessmen’ of progress against “hese objectives is contained within
the Corporate Performance Asssssment Report to include details of the Council's
performance agairst stotutory peformance indicators set oy the Deparimant. All progress
reports are publisnoc on the Councl's wabsite,

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The resourcing cf the Council's actlivities is cutlined in the Annual Reoorl, demonstrating fhe
funding available and what services this funding providaa in 2018/19. There have been
charges fe the way we report our financia performence on the delivery on those services in
our finoncial statemerts. This changz is mainly due te the requiremeant for Councils 1o now
report financia peformance in line with their decision making structure and the infroduction
of the Exoenaiture and Funding anclysis, as set outin rote 2,

The cbjective of the Expenditure and Funding Anaysis is ‘o demonstrale to ratepayers how
he funding available to the Council (i.e. govemmen: grants, rates fees and charges) for the
year has been used in providing services in ccmparison with those rescurces consumed or
eamed by Courcil in accordance with cenerolly accepted acccounting practices.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis as5o shows how this sxpenditure is allocated for
dedision making purposes befween the Council's directorates. Income and expenditure
accourted for under generally accepted accounting practices is oresentec mors fully in the
Comprehensive Income ana Expenditure Statement,

Financial Peformance

For the vear endec 31 Mareh 2019 the Council decreased its General Fund by £2_ 1T, This
mavernant in the General Fund is mairly due lo crealing a orovision for ar overpavmert of
Rates Support Grant. The budget slans farm oart of the Revenue Estimates in 2018/12 the
total nat expenailure budget for the Council was set at £58m:.

The findl set of monagement accounts for the 2018/ 1Y year wos presentad (o the SPAK
Committee on the 14 _ure 20192, The managemeni accounts compaored the budgeted
income / expenditure for the 12 months to the actual / revenue expanditure for the perioc
31 March 2019, The Council reported a £7 16k underspend on service dslivery at year ena.

Mornagemert Accounts are presertad and scrutinised quartedy at tha SPAR committes. The
avercll posilion for the yeor end 31 March 2017 is mainly due to a £1 .4millicr underspend inin
stalf costs due te dalays in flling posts in the structure. The general grant s showing £300k
bettar than budgeted.
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This reflects the amounts of Rates Support Grant received annually from CfC. At the time of
setting the budget for the 2018-17 year, officers weie being acvised of o likely reduciion in
k3G, The actual reduclion was no' as much as anticioalec, This £1.7m und2spend was
countered by a £9 1%k overspoena in waste management due fc over spends within the
gurcge g recycling budgets,

The Cost of Services on Conlinuing Cperations of £43.4m, s repered in lhe Comgrehensive
Income ang Expenditure 3fatement, alio includess the accounting cost of providing services
in addition to the amount funded from axalion, The lolal nel expendilure reporled in e
Comprezhersive Inccme and Expendilure Statement is £66.8m,

Borrowings

For the 20017718 year the Council hos an authonized bormowing imit of 98.5m. Thisis based on
the Councll’s forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In
conjunction with the Council's copital inancing reguirernent of £20.5m. *his ersure the
Council ony borrows for capital purposes.

Curing “he year the Council repaid ex-ernd lcans of £5.4m. Thre Courcil borrowed £11m ‘o
fund ocngeing capltal projzcts. At the 31 March 2079, the fotal amouni cutstanding on
exlemcl loany was £6%.73m.

Copital Expenditure

The Council has an ambltious four-year capital programme of £104 milion. The four-year
copital programme is unaated and approved onnuially by Councll in Febnuiary each year
The investment will help Council meel the strategic objeclives which are st out in the
Cerporara Plan.

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura
Statemenr Includes dliocations of £17.1m 1o fund capllal expenditure,

The most significant spena was on the folowing orojects:
Dawn Leisure Cenfre - £3.500k

Lttys Road Community Cenire - £200k

saintfield Community Hall - £1.45Ck

Play Strategy - £540k

Warenpoint Municipal Park - 2380k

Downpairick Recyciing Cenfre - £700k

Strategy and Resource Allocation

The Medium Term Financial Flan was approvad by the Councllin February 2019, In
accordanzce with tha Local Govemnment lNinance Acl (M) 2011, the Chiel Cxecutive, as Chisf
Finuncial Officer is reqguired o provide assurance lo members on the robusiness of the
reverue esfimates ard the acequacy of the Councll's resernves position as part of the rate
sething process. Defailed esfimates were formuloted presented and scrutinsed by memicers.
Trey tock into account past outturn, curent spending plans and likely future demanc and
pressures,

When setting the distict rate for 2018/1% consideration was given to the following kay
financial factors and uncertainties for the Council:
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« Current oolifical instability prevents the determination of a regional rate for 2018/19.
Land anc Property Services (LPS) have advised that Councils cre protected in
leg'sation ana, Iherefore, are guaran eed payment of ther rates ininstalments. There
may howsver be some delay 1o these paoymenls, ond we have been mindful of his
poterticl delay in our caleuletions of working capital requiremsants a5 part of our
Prudential Indizcators and MEP Statement 2019-20.

e Included within our 20192 20 asfimates cre varicus areas of funcing received from
cenftral govemment. We have included amounts on the basis of our previous
arangements with central govemmen:. Howsvar, it is important to note that until
such fimeas cs a budgei 5 agreed by the Northern Ireland Execulive these funding
shresnims are Lncertain,

a  Witha lack of polirical decision regarding Braxit, the financial imphicatans for Council
are currendly unknown, and nc provision has been made r the astimatas for any
fincrcial implcations arising. Furthermore, included within our 2019-20 estimates aro
vorious areas of funding received from the Eurgpear Unicn undsr programmes which
we hove been advised wil conlinue during “he 2319-20 year.

s At present there hos heen no agreed budget by the NI Fxecutve. The absence of an
agreed budget has the potential ic impact on the akility of the Departmen- for
Communities (DFC) to issus rates support grant to Councils, Whilst tha Local
Govemment MNnance Act (Nerthem Ireland) 2011, Section 27 states that “the
Department shall for ecch financial year make a grant under this section ‘o
Counclls”. Ceunclls have yet to ke advised of the fotal amount of Rates Suppor!
{3rant being made availabie by the DIC for A0 19-20,

Cutlook

The Councl is fully aware that it is operating in an increasingly challenging economical and
poliicad anvironment 1o daliver business as usual as well as our ambitions for the district under
the Lving Well Togsther community plan.

The main uncontroliatle sk to the Council in the medium lerm, 5 Ing impac! of exlemally
imposed increased ta the Council's pay hill, sich as the natinnally negotialed npay awards,
the infroduction of the aporenticeship levy and the eftect of ihe national living woge. Thase
combined with inflation levels al 2.4% exert financial pressure on tha District Rate which cre

beyond the Councils control,

The Councl will aso foce significant year on vear increases in costs in several areas such as
wiaste disposal costs where the arc21 residual contracT ana interim arrangements become

ooerational,

However, the Council seeks out opportunities to pursue cdditiond funding streams for the
dslrict, ocopting innovalive approaches fo delivering sevices and werking in partnership to
ensure |he Distict oplimises ils resources. A few of Ihe currenl inifiatives -he Council is
currently develaping are ouflined helows:

+ City Dea —Thea City Ceal model is the UK Govermmments innovative strategy for
suilding stronger urban cnd regional growta via smarter morz localised and growth
focused investmert decision-making. The chanceller in his budgst statement In
Cotober 2018, onnourced a £350m invesimen! packoge for the Belfust Regions Cily
Secl (BRCE). wiik a further £350m matck funding from Nl Executive ord £150m
contibufion from BECD partners.
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o The Courcil have earmarked “hrae ggnificant projects to benefit the district. Newry
Civic Regereration Project, the Gateway o the Mournes project and the Southarn
Areqa Ralief Road,

« Full Fibre Merwork NI [FFNI) - The Degartment fcr Digitcl, Culture, Medic and Socr:
[CCMS), Lacal Ful Fibre Networks Progromme (LFFN) s designed o stimulale
commercial investment in full fibre networks In rural and urban locatons across the
whole of the LK. On 180 February 2019, MAMODC officers reprasanting all the Councils
in the FFNI consarfium, presentec the collaoorarive LFFN bid to the DCMS. The oid was
succassful. This funding of £15m aims to deliver full fikre to 880 council and school sites
by March 2021, using the "Public Sector Anchor Tenancy” approcch. This reprasent:
Frasse * of o popoied longer-lenm progamme of fbre elaied investment,

= The Peace IV Programme - is a cross-border initiative designea fo support peace and
recondilicticon in Nothern Irsland and the Border regicn. Funding cf £4.7m has beer
owarded trom the European Union PEACE IV programme managed by the Special
EU Programmes body [SEUPBR).

These initiatives enhorce the Council's opportunitiss o develop services, deliver on owr
key objactive for the District ond grow the District to make it a leading destration ta live,

work. VIt and invest.
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Slatement of the Councll's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section | of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern reland| 2011 @ council shall
make arrangements for the proper cdministration of its financial affdrs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its chiet financial officer and hese arrangements skall
be caried oul under the supervision of its chief finanzial officer.

Under Regulaton 7 ot the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulaticns (Nerthem
Ireland) 2015 the Councl, or a Committee, is required by resolufion, to approve the
accounts.

Tha Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilifies

Under Regulation 8 cf the Local Govenment [Accourts ard Augil) Regulations (Norlbern
Ireland; 2015, Ihe Chiel Financial Officer is resoorsible for the preparation of tne Council's
Slalemznt of Accounis in the form directed by the Department for Cammunites.

The accoun’s must give a true and fair view of the income and expendture ard cash flows
for the financial yecr and the financial position as at the erd of the financial year.

n preparing s Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial nfficer iz recuired 1oy

» observe the Accounis Direclion issucd by the Department for Communites inc uding
compliance with the Cods of Pract'ce on Lacal Autharty Accounting in the United
Kirgdom

» follew relevant accounting and disclosure recLiremants and appy suitabls
accourting palicies on o consistent basis, ard

«  make Ldgements and asliimates tha® are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is lsc reqguired lo.

¢ keep proper accounting records that are up-lo-date, and
« take reascrable steos for *he orevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularifies.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Respansibility

The Council's Annual Govermunce Slalemen! follows DIC accounts direciions and where
apolicable the factsheet on Governance Stofemenis Bwiea by NIAD r 2003 ond comprises
the: tollowing sections:

* Scope of responsiblity;

The purpose of the governance framework;

The govenance framework:

Keview of etectiveneass;

Update on significant govemnance issues that ware declared at the year-end 2017 18;
and

= Significant governonce issues far the year end 2018-19.

Mewry, Mourne and Jawn Distne? Ceuneil i; responsible for ersuing thaot its business is
conducted in accordance with the low ang proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounicd for, and used cconomicaly, eficiency and
eftectively.

The Caundgil also has a duty under Lozel Government [Best Valug) Act [Northern Irelong)
2002 to moke arrangemens for cantiruous improvement r the way in which its functions are
exercised. havirg regard te a combination of economy, effiziency and effectivaness.

In dischargng this averall respersibility. the Council & responsible for putting in place proper
arongements for the governance cf its affairs, faclitafing the effeclive exercise cf ifs
functions, which includes arrangements ler the monagement of risk.

ihe Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statemert which is consistent with the
orinciplas of the CIPFA/SOL ACF Fremewark Delivering Good Governcnce in _Local
Zovemment (2014 edition). This stalement exglains haw the Council has comglied witn the
coce and meets the requirements cf Local Government [Accounts ond Audit) Regulations
Mortnern Irzland) 2075 r relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement,

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems ord orocesses, and culture and values,
by which the Council is dirscled und contolied ond its activities through which It accounts
lu, engages with and leads i's communities. [l enables the Coureil ta monitor the
acnievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led e
the delivery of aporopriate, cost-effective services.

The system of intemal control is a signilicen! parl ¢f thal fremewors and s designed to
monage tisk 10 ¢ reascrablez level. It cannot elminatz all fisk of fcilure to achiave policies,
aims nnd obhjectives and can therefore anly provide recsanakle ord nat chsolute assurance
of effectivensse. The svstemn of internal contro i based on an ongeing process cesigned to
identify anc priorifise the risks to the achievement af the Counzlil's polcies, aims and
objectives, ‘o svaluale the likelihcod of those -isks being realised and the impact should they
be redlised, and to manage them efficiently, effeciively and economicually.












The Council itse'f maintains cverall contral of the governance framework and has been
involved, for exampls, in approving the implemeantalion of the risk management ard
staternznt of assurance orocesses. Primary responsibility for overseerg the governance
process s Iheresporsiktzilty of the Audil Commillee as o stording commilee of CTouncil. The
role of “he Audit Committae extands to receiving repor's from fhe Council's internal and
entfermal auditors to ensure that ony issues raised are subject to due consideraton and are
addressed by officers on a timely basis. In considering this Annual Governance Staterrent,
the Audit Commiltee nave considered the review of the govemance frameworc and system
of inlerna’ controls prepared by the Chief Executive.

Ihe tollowing procass has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the eftfectiveness of the
governance framework:

s fhe Members: & commitiee struciure is in ploce within Council which provides
elecied members with a democratic mechanism by which to aporove and scrutinise
Counci Business. Positicns of responsibility ond Committee members are
appointed as per the Local Govemmeant Act (M) 2014 and are rellective of the
broad political make up cf the Council as elected.

The man dacision making body is full Coundil of elected Mambers who are ullimaiely
responsible for arsuing effeciive governancea arrangemants are in place in order for
Council o achieve its goals ana obectives. Council meets monthly in statutorny
meelings. Council hes established sub-Committees of Counci' to corsicer in further
detail its operations in line with spacific areas of responsibilily, as set cut in the
Caonstifution. Threse Committees of elected members are infermed by Council
Officers.

Ceouncil business is governad by Council $tanding Orders and Comm ttee Terms of
Reference to ensure that the transaction of the business of Council and its
Cemmittees is properly regulated and conducted in an efficient, fair ard legal
manner.

+ the Senior Officers: The Chief Executive ansuras that all Council sarvices ard octivities
are delivered in accordance witk the aims of the Councll's Corperate Flan. The Chiet
Execufive is supported by a Senior Managsment Team who meet a* least monthly to
monitor strategic direction and good governance ccross the District. Durrg 2018-19 a
meeting of the CMT occurred monthly, Dircctors mect regularly with senior members
of their Directorates to ensure that ol staff cre aware of Council's oricritizs ord that
risks are being aporopriately managed.

Quartery Assurance Statements ara completed by Assistant Directors and Direclers to
give the Chief Executive assurance over “he contrals that are in place. The Assurance
Statements also make the Chisf Executive aware of any of the risks arising which may
have a nogatve mpact on the Council,

+ The Audit Commiffee: The Aucit Committae praevides an important source of
assurance to thase charged with governancs about the Council's arrargemeants for
maraging rsk, maintaining on effective confral environment, and reporting on
financial and other performance. The Audit Committes has an Indecendsnt
Chairperson and met on five occasions durng 2018/17 {one special audit committes
in February 2017]. The Audt Committee Terms of Reference were revised in Feoruary
2017 and sets out the puroose and the roles and rasponsiailities of commitiee,

The efecliversass of Acdiln Cammilies was reviewed al The Camimilles on The 15
Jungry 2019, Tris was dore using the Notionol Audil Office Sell-Assessment Chaoklist

(September 2017).
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The Committee waes satisfied with ite overall performance when comparad agairst
tre checkiist, The NAOQ checklist is the benchmark for best

practice. The Audit Committee Annual regort 2018/19 wes presented fo the 3 July 2019 Audit
Committes to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement,

e By Internal Audit: T2 Intemal Audit function s carrice out by an ndependent firm in
accordance with Public Secter Internal Audit Standards. It provides assurance and
advisory service to assist Council achieve ils objectives and mprove the effectiveness
of intemal centrol, risk management and governance processss. Nre intemat audit
assignments were carizd oul in 2018/19, p'us a follow up review of the 2017/1&
recommendations.

« Other explicit review ; assurance mechanisms:

La]

a

Hedlih and Safely: 3y reviews o Heallh and Safety by professionally qudlified
oflicers, the Coporate Health ard Safely Committee. and various Health and
Scfety sub committess.

Risk Managemrent; Risk Managemeant is embedded across all activities of the
Counc| and is a confinuously evolving process, which Is monitored clesaly by
the Aaudit Services Manager. The Corparate Risk Register s presented quarterly
to bolk SMT and the Audit Commities,

Extemal Funding: Extemnal funding throughout the vear & subject to
indepencen! audils rom the relevant funders i.e. European Court of Auditors,
Govemmant Cepartments. SEUPE.

Local Government audit: Work cared out by the Local Gavernment auditor
during 2017418 is also used by the Council as an addltional assurance
mechanism. The Cauncils Ferformance Impraovemeant Plarn nos also been
exterrally audited by the NAT and received a satisfactory Assurance rating
in 2018/17,

The Transpart Regulation Unit anc the Freight Transport Association undertook
areview of the Council's compllance with, and masagemsnt af. confrals in
respect of certain ospacts of the Operatoes Licence on direction froem

Council.

The Accounling Officer has also been advised on fhe review of effectivencss of the
governancs frameweork by the Audit Commitice and a plan to address any weaknesses and
ensure continuous imprevement of the system is in place.
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Update on Significant Governance Issues that were declared in 2017-18

Five issuas were declared Inst yvear ana four of these confinue to be declared o issues in this
year's stotement [Procurement and Contract Manogement, [T “ransformation Project,
Ecenomic and Palifica cimate and Belfast City Region daadl).

An updale on the remaining governiance ssues rom 201 7/18 i provided below.
1. General Data Prorection Regulation {GDPR)

The GDPR came info effect in the UK from 25 May 2018, The GD?R gims primciily to give
conlrol 1o Gilizens und esidents over Thedr pesonal dala and Lo smiplily he iegulatory
environment for infermational business by unifying the regulafion wittn the EJ.

Council hove underloken considerable work to ensure that ' is compliant with GDPR. The
complionoe shuchae is now complele and all posls have been liled. An incependen|
urgarizalion were pracured to commence a gap analysis on whal the Councll needed to
do to Le compliant with GDPE. The final audit report was completzed in May 2018, The
implemenlalion of the dala audit recommendations to ensure Coundil meets its obligations
urder GCPR are curently well underway. Mandatory Dota protection f GODFR raining was
rolled oul 1o all stall and memibers, ard This was compleled in March 2019, A new Access to
Infurmation Policy ond Procedure was approved by Council in July 2019,

Significant Governance Issues in 2018-19

The significan! governance issees for 20018779 were idenlili=d hrough the review of significant
risks in the Corporate Risk Register lor the year ending 31 March 2017, comnsideralion of
sirifican! evenls fissues, infernal / esernal audil reporls and a review of The Direclors
Assuronce S afements.

Inlermal Audit conducted nine reviews during 2018-19. Eighf Intemal Audit Reviews received
o safisfac ory assurance rating and ore report recaived a limited assurance rating.

Internal Aud't also underook a follow up review of recommendations made in thelr 2017/18
‘evizws. The review idenlified that, out ol Ihe 48 coccepled recommendations, 8
recommeandoticrs ware fully implemented. 21 recommendciicns were partiaily
implemented, 17 recommendations were not implemented, and the remalning 2
recoimmendoticrs weare ne longer accepled ar could not be tested,

fhe interna) audit assurance work s detalled In the Internal Audit Plan for 20138/19 was
completed in full, Infemal Audit's Arrual Opinion durrg the pericd rom 1 April 2018 to 31
march 2019 was that “the Council’s sysiems [n relation to Internal control. risk management
and govemance were. [n general. adequaie and operated effeclively and can provide
salisfactory assurance In relation to the effective and efficient achlevement of the Council’s

objeclives.”
The internal audt report which received a limited assurance rating is surnmarised below:

Facilities Managament — Canfeenrs
internal Audit concludsd fthat there were a number cf key conrols absent from the Council's
systems for facilifies management at “he cortaens. Specificclly, the review icentified a lack
of basic conirol operating over the cash collected particulady at the Monaghan Row
canteen and a fgilure to fully investigate discreparcies on a daily basis. Intemal Audit also
considered that furthar work is also reeded to considar the efficiency of purchasing and
meal planning ot the canteers and ¢ 1sed o have a strategic view abecut the longer term
viakil'ty of operating the canteens.
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Infenal Audit cercluded Ikat in these circumstances. the remaining contrals in place con
only provide a limifed level of assurance regurding the effective and efficient achlevemerit
of the Coundil's objeclives in relation "o Faciitias management ot the canteers. The Audit
Services Manoger will compleie a detailed fcllow uo of the recommendations prior o
verification in Seplemoesr 2019,

The Audit Services Manager will conlfinue o follow up on the 2016/17 and 2C17/18 Infernal
Audil Recemimendualions which have not yet been implemertad. anc wil also falow up on
the 2018/19 recommendcations prior 1o the Independent Internal Auditor carying thair own
follow up review during 2019/20. The orogress on the implementation on Internal Audit
recomimencalions will be reported quarlerly at the Aucit Commiltea along with an update
on ouistanding external audit recommendations.

In aadifion to those arsas. noted by Internal Audit above., the following govemance ssues
have been identified:

1. Procurement and Centract Management

Procurement has remainad a significant risk in the Councik Corporate Risk Register af
year-and. The risk that the Counczil may bracch lagisiation in procimng goads ard
services could affect the Councils ability to deliver ifs objectivas and achieve vaolue
for money, open the Council o legal challenge and could result in reputctional

damage.

Internal Audit gave purchasing. procurement and cantract monagement a limited
assurance rating dudng the 2015-16 year. During the 2018-192 firanciol year Intemal
Audit Completed a Stage two of their procuremert audit which focused on the
compliance with the Councils reviset procurement policy [Jonucry 2018). Bath the
stoge on2 audit (review of the revised policy during the 201/- 18 year] and stage two
audits recewved o sotisfactory assuronce evels, At the January 2019 Audit Committes
it was agreed to remove the pracurement update from the being a standing agenda
item due to the progress made over the last number ot years, Within the 2018-19
linancicl year, the contrels around procuremert have been strengthened
significanthy;

e The Newry, Moume and Down Distnct Cooncil Procurement Policy and
Procedures was approvec by the SPAR committee on the 14 Dacembar 2017
and sukbsaquertly ratifiee by Council on the 8 January 2018, Busingss Cese
tempates and procedures were approved in February 2018 oy SMT,

= nJune 2018, a procwemen | expert delivered training fo relevant staff. The
training covered drafing business cases. drafting tender documents, tender
evaluatier and training an the Councils e-procurement system.

= A new procurement training schedule was delivered to dll stalf. This
commeancec in Februery 2012 and was completad in May 2019, The five
separate sessions targetea particular officers progortionate to the valus ol
procurenenl exercises they regulanly underlake,

Ever though considerable progress has been made. we are sfill highlighting
procurement as a significant issue as the policy end procedures continue ic imbed.
However, the main concern gong forward is in relation to contract mancgement.
There is a detciled section on contract managerment within the new policy o assist
Council Officers and further training and information will be rol ed out to all staff in the
coming year. Internal Aucht will alsn have an audit focusing on contract
managemant within thair four year intermal aud t plan 2019-2023.
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2.

IT Transformation Project

Council is currently undertaking an IT transicrmafion project to improve the IT
environment and enhance ouwr [T services. This is a long-term preject ang uniil a time
whnan the IT Stratagy is ‘ully implamenied, we are actively working at maraging rskin
this area and ensuring our current IT systers and IT security is sufficiently robust to
meet the needs of the arganisation. As mentioned akove the Cicaster Recovery and
progress on implementing the Councils IT strategy internal audit received ¢ imitad
assurance. The folow up internal Audit of the report abave highlighted limited
progress in implemenied in progressing the recommendations (3 recommerdatfions
not implamented and 4 anly partially implemented). An IT Programme Group has
been established and all recommendctions folling out of the internal audit repert in
relation to the IT Strategy will be implemented via this group.

The IT cepartment have established an IT Sarvice Catalegue, which details all the
Council's IT architeciure and provices a raving for the impact a service falure would
Fave on Coundil cperations to ensure crifical processes remain operational, The
pricritisation of IT projects is raviewsd annually oy SMT and progress reports are
reviewed regularly.

Eccnomic and Political Climate

Therse is a majer extermnal influence on the Councils future linancial security and that
will be poteniially impacted by the UK's progress in negetiatng its exit from the
European Union and agreeing its future fradirg arrargements. The domestic
economy has rermained relatively robust since the 2016 referendum, but there are
indications that unceriginty over the fulure is now weighing on growth, Coconomic
growth is Thersfore forecast to rermain sluggish throughout 2012/20,

Narthem reland no longe- a5 a devolved government, This could have g poteniia
imoact on the abiity of DIC toissue the Rates Support Grant o Courcils, and how
significant the reducilion ar the Rates Supoort Grant will be year on year, There is clio
o possbiity thot Lecal Councils could be given greater responsibiities in the alzsence
of devclulion,

The Council sstablished g Bregt Member's forum in March 2018, The farum consists of
Senicr Officers anc Members. Their role s to create contingsncy plans to monitor and
take actions to reduce the risks aising due to the curent levels of uncertainty,
Council ulso have eslablished a Brexil Task and Finish working group which hos o
specific nsk register for potertial Brexit cutcomes.

Feiasl Cly Region Dea

Approunale governunce and prograrmime managemen| arrangemenls were pul in
place to develop the Belfasl Region City Deal (BECD| proposition, which was
preseried lo UK and Nl govermenls in Seplember 2018, The chancellor in his
budget stalement in Oclober 2018, anrounced a £330m invesiment package for the
BRCD, with a lurher £350m malch funding from K Executive and £150m cartibu lion
rom 3RCD variners. Belfas: City Coundcil, as the lead auitherity, are now puling in
place adedicaled orogramme cffice and revised Governance Structures to defiver
Ihe second phase of The prowamme, which includes the devslopmen! of Oulline
Business Cases (OBCs) for all projects, and will result ir g finuncial agreement being
drawn up between BRID and the UK govermmen! and Nl Execulive,
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Work will alsa continue on the governance arrangerments and assurance framework
wnich will be pul in place for tne delivery phase of the geal, which is lkely to
commence in 2020,

MMDDC have governance struciures in place via Project Steering Boards, which will
have over sight on the desan. development and impiemantation of the regeneration
and tourism capital projects which Counci are the lead on. Ccouncil decisions on City
Deal initiatves will be tabled at the CRT Commitlee, which wil be supplamented with
a focused City Dedl councillor refererce group, At a regional level Advisory Boards
will be establishsd under eack of the Cily Deal pillars, and arn NMDDC official will be
reoresented al sach of hese,

Big Screen Investigation

An imvestigoticr by ourinlernal auditors info the Coundl's procuremenl, and ereclion
ol the 'Big Screen’ in Newry rased serious concernrs around the processes suirourding
the procurement and erection of the Big Jcreen by the l2gocy Newry and Moume
Counci, as well as raising cencens regarding 1be provision of inforrmalion Tor auail
purposes and under Freedom of Informaticn relating to the Big Screer.

Arvamoun! of £23,192 provided 1o Newry and Moume Council gs o contribution fc
fhe Big Screen project was repaid to the Department Tor Communifies in Ap il 2019 as,
following he investivations findings, they desemed Ihs expenditure rregular,

A bassons lecmed repornt was produced duning The course of The invesligations which
has been widely shared with relevant sicff, Additional haining has been orovidec fo
staff 'r the areas of procwemenl, GDPR and code of conducl, Further iraining on
fraud, whislleb owing and conilicts of interest is plorned for Av-umn 201%.

6. Plurning Bucklog

The faliure 1o deliver timely planning decisions s highlightec as a sk within tre
Comporate Risk Register. Recently the planning backlog has been increasing rather
than decreasng. The number of ['ve aoplications at the end of May 2019 was 1223,

Intermal Audit completed an audit of the planning function during 2017718 and 1his
recelvad a limited cssurarnce raling. Interral Audit cancluded that there are currenily
a number of key confrols absent from the Counci's systems for Planning. particulany
r relarion to: the Councll's performance agains' the legislative targats; the
completenass and validation ef the documentaticr supporting panning applications
and enforcement actions: the lack of clarty in respec] of key performance ind catars
within the Flanning Daportmeant: and the izval of non-compliance by the Courcil
with Its own planning and enforcement procedures. At May 2019, threa
recommerdations remoined not implemented and “wo recommendations anly

partially implemented,

Senior Management re considering ways iorword fo ensure complionce wirh policy
and legislative targets while maintaining the number of live cases to an acceptabla
level, Internal Audit e alsa going fo comy ot areview of the monagemeant of
planning applicafions in the 201920 yaar,

7



We propose over the coming year 1o take sleps fc address the above matters fo further
erhance cur governance arangemsants. We ore salisfied that these steps will address the
naed for impravaments that were idenfified in our review of efiectiveress and will monitor
therimglementation and operction as part of our next annual raview.

Signed:
CHAR

Signed:
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Leading member [or eguivalent] & Chiel Execulive [ur equivaleni] on behall of [the
authority]
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HORTHERMN [RELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BGDIES m
REMUMERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2019

INTRODUCTION

The Local Goverrment [Accounts and Audil] Regulations |Merhem elond) 2015 reguiie larger local govemment

becles to prepare a remuneraticn report o part of the slalement of accounte,

ALLOWANCE ANC REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLCRS

Mlzwoneces are payable by councils ‘o coungillzrs and committes member: under Pait 3 of "he Local Covernment
Finonce Act |Norfham reland| 2011 and The Local Cavermmert [Payments to Counciller;) Regulalions [Mosthem
Iresand] 2012 which come into eperatian en T Apl 2012

Gridarnce and detziminations an Cauncillors’ Allowances applicable fram 1 Apel 2018 wers Iszued by the
Cepartment ior Communities on31 July 2018 ( Circular LG 12/2018). Cetalk o the-cllowances paid "o indivicug)
councillors are puldished on counch wabsites.

Follewing loco: elacfions on 2 May 20172, 462 councillers were clectod to the 11 councils for a faur year ferm. Nowry,
Mourne and Down Disfrict Council heid 41 ecuncdlons in 201319,

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remunerction of senior erployes: empleyed by the Couneil it detamined by ke Council in line with that
daiamminar by the Novlionol Taint Courdil (MIC) far Local Goavernmient Sendces. Sanior siaff are thase staff who are
members of the Execulive Management Team/ienion Moncagement (ecm.

Council appeintments of employsea: are made In cocordence wihih the Local Govemment Stalf Camm stions Code
of Procedures on Recruifment and Salection. which requices apponiment to be on merit and an the oasis of tair ond

ppen compelition,
Unless athemwse shoded below, the official: covered by this repor hold oopoiniments which are oper-ended.
INCEPEMDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Joseph Compiell is an Inependent Mamber and Chairperscn of the audit Committea. The rale is o helo promaote
e Pighmes] slarooids o ibe fnorecio! moanogemen | of the Council ond hereby snsue he ecocoundabilily of public
‘wnds. Itis atermporary postion unlil 315t March 2012, A poyment of £500 is paid per meeting (s includes
preparction time of £250 and £250 for the raesefing] plus tavel and expanias.
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ALLOWANCES PAID 7O COUNCILLORS

Thee lodeal crreron] poid 1o Covnciliors by way ol cllowances, under Part 3 of the Local Governmment Finance Act
{Mertaem freland] 2011 ond the Local Govemnrent (Payment fo Councilar) Regulafions (Northern Ireiand) 2012 wos:

Table 1: Total Allewonces poid to counclliors {gudited infermaficn)

Alcwence M018/1% 078
Total Allowances Mumber of Councillars Tolal Allowances c H:’::herd win
£ recaiving the Allowonce £ AR e
the Allowence
Basc Allowonca R3R.ARR 41 L85 430 da*
Jpedal
Resmonsibility 72333 2d Pl e 25
Allowonze
Chainzersoy Depul e :
y Moyor Allowonce 177G & 17770 z
v oe Cholmpaison/
Diepihy Moyor 8,170 2 &170 2
Allowance
Mileage allowance 75403 a7 ARAZT a3
Fubilic Trarsponl
ot Othar Trovel it | 18 17,441 20
Incidentals
Subsistence £.228 2 5407 14
Courses/
Canferances Visits
{regislation & =8 L 5 L
feinirg fees)
Bependents' Caren
i 975 1 238 |
TOTAL 302 167 . T¥2,65%

* Pleose noler In 2017/2018 £4 Councillors received on ol ocotion of tha 41 Basie Alowances a: 3 Coundcillor: resigned
Tid-year ond thelr repacerents received Ihe halance of thase allawnnces

Z2iails of the allowances pod o individual councliiors in 201819 are pubiished or the council weabs te at
W newrymoumeanddown.ong/councilios-cliow Inces-anc S penEes,




REMLUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remunerafion af tanior emaloyess covers the BExeculive Management Taam/Senicr Monagament Team. The
following toble orovides delails of 1he reruneration paid (o fenicr erplovess:

Table 2 - Table 2: Remuneratizn [Including salary)[audited infermation]

oficens 2018179 2007/18
Salary (Full Bonus Banefisin | *Pension Total | Solary (Full | Banue | *Fenslon | Banefits in | Totaol
yeor Payments | Kind (10 | paqefits flo year |Payments | panepts | Kind(io
equivalent in nearast nearest eguivalent ito nearest
brackets £100) £1.000] In brackets nearast £100])
where £'000 where £'000 £1,000)
applicable) EDD0 |applicable)| ' £'000 £'000
£'C00 £'000 £'000

Liem Hannoway

Clark & Chiel 115- 120 5-10 0 8000 |1zo-123] 11s-120 200 6000 |115120
Exgculive

**Edwin Curtls

DI'rEC:h:r QI‘ Shﬂ*egic ?u X |'?l5 IE-:-‘" 55 - 6‘} lt’Ct'

E:T?E;&m i 0 ful yec 0 21000 | 70-75 |85 Wl yeur 100 12000 | 55-60

rlarmarce (Und . e

14/C1/2012) equivalent) cquivalent)

Michael Lipset

Direztor o7 Actve

Haalth & 83 -50 Q 34,000 85-%0 B0 - 83 1000 23000 | 80-85
Communiies
|Morie Ward Direc i

of Entaipriie,

Regenaralion & 85 -50 0 £9.000 85- %0 80 -85 100 25,000 8J- 85
[oursm

Dorinnia Carville

Dirsclorol AC - 85 0 000 | ed-a3s5 | so-ss 190 28000 | 80-35
Carporale Services

Roland Meore

Dlireefor of e

Nelchbosmhood 80 -85 - a 84000 80-35%5 75 .80 830 A,000 75-80
Services

* The vaive of persion benafits accried duaing M2 yaar it calculaled a3 (The real Incraase in denson muliplied by 20)

plus {the recl increase in any lum sum| less (the contrutions mode by the individual), The real increasess exclude
ircreass: duc toinflation ond any increass of decrease duc fo a fransfer of pensian righ's,

** Eowin Curdis recuced due te long term tickness cbsence.
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Councils are renuited to discinie the relntionship Between (he remunaratinoe aof the tighestt po'o mamber of fhe
Executive Management Team,5e0io" Managemsant Team and the median remuneration of 1he Coundls wokionce,

The bandad remuneration of the highest poid member of the Execufive Management Taam/Laniar Menagamen/
Tedrr in the firancicl vear 2218/19 was £1152 - Z120k. This wos 5.45 limes the medion remuneration of the walkierce.
which wos £21,174,

Tabie 3: Relolionship between e remunerallon of the bighest pald member of Ihe Execulive Managemenl
Team/Senlor Management Teom and the median remuneration of the Councils worklorce (oudited infarmalion)

018/17 2017718
Salory Banc of Fighes' Paid member of fhe 115-120 115- 120
Exccutive Maragement Teem/ Senior
Manacement leam
Median Totol Remureration E21,074 £20.571
Reatio L 7

In 2018/ 17, no employes: received remwuneration in sxcess of the highest pald memrmber of the Executive
Mancgement Team{Senior Management Taam.

Tolal remunerction includes saiary, bonus paymens and benedits in kind.

Salary
“Salany incudes gross salory, overtime, and any grafia paymenis.

Bonus Faymenis

Bonws poyments ore based on perunmonce evab Ol icined oo ore mode s o of [Fe opproisol process, Bonuses
relate 1o the performance in the yearin which they become paychle 1o the individual. The bonuses reportad in
2018/19 relote to performonce in 2018145,

Benefits in Kind
The monefary volue of benefils inking covern any banefil provided by e employer ond rsaled by | M Reverue
and Custors o a laxakble emoiurmant.

Exlt Peckages for staff
The nurmber af st pockoge: provided to all o't by the Council. togathar with fotal cod per bond and total cost od

M cormpulsory and it redundoncies are sel ol in he oble below

lTable 4: Exit Packoges in 2018/19 {audited infarmation)

201819 2017/18
Mumber of Mumber of Tatal Total Cost of | Number | Numbe: of Total Total Cast
campuliory Other Humbe- of | Pockages in cf Dthas Number of of
Severance Redundancies | deparwes Exlt each Cost | Compuls | deparures Ext Packages
Packege Cosl Band agreed |Mackagesin Bond ory' agreed Fackages | ineach
each Cost £000 Redunds ineach | CostBand
Band nc'es Cosl Band £'000
£ - E20.000
20001 - E40 000
£20,001 _£40,000 s i ol  z 1ozuasl
£50,001 - E80,000 | | a5.2504 | 1 61,757
£20,001 - £100,000 3 ¥y 178,60
LI00.001 - E150,000 1 | To0ER "
£150.001 - E200.200
[Total 0 f . 364 742 0 4 1ea24d




Pension Benefits

The Locol Governmient Pemsion Scherme (Nainem inslond ine Scheme) whick g lunced gefined benelil pension
schame, which provides relirgment benefits for counail employees on g "coreer overage revalucd eamings”’ basis
frar 1 Aprii 2015 Prine fa that date sensfits were Bulll up on a "final salan hesis.

Fram | April 2015 a member bUids up refiremel pension at the e of 1/4%1h pensanable pay 1or eack yedr,
Persion beaedils inrelation o membeship Belween 1 AQrh 2009 arg 31 Morch 2015 weae Duill up al the rale of 183
persionable poy for goch yeor of membaeship. There is no automatic lump sum orovided in respect of membanibip
after 31 Morch 20072, Persian hanefits in relofion In ony membenhip cefore | Apil 2008 were buill op ol the rate of
1/301 [pension) and 3/80ths [Tax-Tree lump sum) of oendcrable pay for each yeor of merenship ul 1o 31 March
2007, Al velivernenl, roemilens ooy give up some pension o addifional lump sun, subfec] 1o EM Revenue and
Cushoms [HWRC) limils. The conversion rate is £12 ocaitional lump sum for every L1 of pension given uo,

Councillars have bean asle fo jein the Schame sinze May 201 |, The Scheme application it madifies fo rallect the
fact thil eouncilian hold or slected office. Cauncillar mambier: hove always acenied pansion on o coreat overange
bosis. Fror 1o 1 Apri 2015 pension wds occruad af arareof 1/60h ang maealler oo ralte of 1/451h,

The Scheme i fundad by confributions made oy both emplayees/councilons ond employers, Prar fe | Apil 2209, o
rmemoer’s confnbution rales wers fived al 6% of haw pensionable remimsiation [excepl o hose who were enllled
to conlripute to the Scheme ol 5% before 1 February 2003 and hove remaoined in corfinuows employment), Tisred
memaar confrbution rates, delerminad by the whnole-time equivalent rate af ooy, were irlrodJced from 1 April 2002
Fraorm | Aprl 3015, the member contibulicn rales ore determined an the actual rale of poy.

Tae ranges fcr the bancs for flered contibution rotes are revlsed by the Deparment for Communiilas In Agrll each
year in accordancs with the increase appled to a pension in payment, The bands, effactive fram | Al 2018, wers
s follows:

Table 5: Employvee Conirioution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribulion Rate
1 £0- £1.4 500 | 545%
2 Lid 50 - E22 {0 58%
J 42 100 - E36,900 &.0%
i £3G.F01 - E44,7C0 6.8%
S - | 44701 - £8E.300 . | 8.5%
& Meore thon £88,300 10.5%




Ernploven' cordbwion ales are delberrminsd by the fund's ocluary every hres years of the iennial valuation, A
tormal tiennicl actuaral valuation of the Fund a3 at 21 Maras 2016 was conied outin 2016/17 and 5o the amployer
confribution rates kor lhe 3 yeas commencing | Apal 2077 as follaws:

Tabla &: Employe: Contrlbutlon Ratas

Year Employver Conhibulion Rale
| Aprli 201 7 - 31 March 2018 18% ~ | 8% cefick confiibution
| Apnil 2018 - 31 Mach 2019 195% = | &% gelicil conhiby lion
1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 0% + | 5% ceficit contribution

The Lacal Goverrmert Pendon Schame Regulations [Morthern Irsland! 2014 ware made on 27 June 3014 ard The
Local Government Fension Schame (Amerdment ond fransifionaol Provisians) Reguladions (Nodiemn relond) 2004
wer2 made on J0 June 201 4, Bolh safs of requiations ara effeciive from 1 Agril 2013,

Councillors have D2en able to jcin the Schema since May 201 1 and ‘herefore nove not gocrued sianificant benefits
s for, Howesyer, B in-veon pession conlibutioons made By the Councl lonall cowcibon Juring 2008717 wos
£159.930,

Tre value of pension benefils of ihe most serion maraogement of he Councl accroed duicg he yeor wos us follows;

Table 7. Persion Benelils of senlor stoll In 2018/17 (oudited information]

Oflicers Accred Pensional | Real increase inpension | SETV al | *CETV ot |Real increase in CETY
pension oge a3 at 31/3/19| ond related lump sum ot | 31/3/19 | 31/3/18
£'000 pention age EDO00
£000 £'000 £000
Liorm Hanraway a3 - 60 [-0.3] - 00 1394 (BT 30
Lcnm 2 Chiat pius W sum of 125 - | oius Jurep sum of G0 - |-
Executive 130 )
sk Curlis 4048 1.0_1.5 933 389 a7
Diraclor of Strategic| ©lvs lume sum of 80-85 | plus irp sum of 1.7 - (-
Planning & s}
Paformanca (Unt
14/0172019)
ichael Lipsett 85~ 3 20 25 723 bé4 34
Fme:;m.- ot Active plus lurmp sum 2! JO-75 | plus lump sum ol 3.5 -
Healih & 1.0
Cammunifics
i i 15 -1 15-20 143 139 15
M Waord Diesiclor no IUTE suMm NG Wmp surm
ot Entemitise,
Regeneraficn &
Toursm
Drevinnia Tanville | & - 20 1.5-20 17% | S | &
Cirector of no ump surm no urmnp surm
Carpoerate Services
Reland Moare | =02 4.0-45 2é5 | &1 53
Directar of pus umpum el 10-15 | pluslumpsumof 2.5-
Neighoouhood a4
Servicas

' Pleqse note. new franster lactorns, ettactive trom 7 lanuary 2019 hove bean wsed 10 lecaiculate e A0 /L2018 CElY
and for the 201372017 CETY. This s Decowe e realinorease in CETY showld exclede lhe impoc! of any change i
feetars. It decs mean that the CETY now stoted for 20017/2C18 will pe difforant ‘rom that stated al tho ond of last yoar.




The Cosh Equivalent Transier Yalue (CETV) E
ihis is 1he acuanialy asiessed capitaited valle of the pensicn scheme benefits accrued oy o member af a particular

point in lime, Tre bemelib volued ae e mermben’'s cocoved benelils ond any conlingenl jpouse's pension payaols
from the scheme. |t s o poyrent made by ¢ persion scheme of arangemanlt ta secue persion banefils in anoather
persion schemas of arangement whnen the memnat leaves o scheame and chonses to fransfer the pension henefit
they have accrued in their former scheme. [ha pention figuras shown relate to the benefirs that the individual has
accrved as g conseguencea of their tatal membenhip of the penson scheme: not just Iheir serdse in o serior
caopocity bo which disclosure applies. CETYs ore calevlated in accordancs with The Qooupalionsl Pension ichames
{Transfar Velues! |Amerdment) Regueatinns and do nol take accaunt of any actual or pa‘antial reduction ta paneft

rasulting friom Liletlme Allowance Tax which may be due when pension cengfits are faker.

Thea real increase in the value cf the CETV
This reflects the increcse in CETY effecilively funded by the emplover, IF fokes acooun: of the netente n ancruec

pensizn due to Inflation, contibullons oald by the employee (Inciuding the value of any berefi's anifened om
another pensicor icheme ¢r arangementl and uies commeor marks| valuation faclos for the slart ond end of the

pariod,

Chief Executive
September 2019



Cerdlicate of tha Chief Financlal Offlcer
Fertify Hmals
{a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2019 or pages 28 to 41 hos been prepared in the

farm directed by the Depormert for Communifies and under the accounting policies sef sul an pages 42
to 59,

(Bl in my opinion the Stalement of Account: aives o frue ard 1gir view of the income and excenditure and

cash flows for the finoncio’ year ond e aancial posifion as of 1he end of live noncial yea endineg 315

March 2019,

Cnibef Mnanclal Cficer

Date XS f 08

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

Thasa accaunts will Ba approved by retalution of the Council/Cammittes or xx September 2019

Chairman

Date w2019

LT



Independent Auditor's Report fo the Membrers of the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council

I have auditad the statemert of azcounts of the hewry, Moume and Down District Councll tor the yeor endec 313
March 2019 uncer the Local Govemmen! |Medham keland) Oscer 2005, The financiad stalements corprize the
Movemeant in Keserves Slatement, Comorengniive come and Sxpendiure siatremen:. Baonce sheal, Cosh Flow
Stalement, und rdoled roles, The financio stolerrents bove been prepared cncke he occoureing poficies sl ol
within them,

Thiis rerport is rroce sofely o e Mermbens of e occomdonce wilh e locch Govenenent (Morfte beland) Order
2005 and for no other purpose. as spacified in ne S'atement of Responsibili-ies issued oy lhe Chief Local Government
Auditor

Respective responsiblifies of the Chief Financial Qfficer and the independent auditor

As explained rmore fully in the Stalement of the Counc'l™s cnd Chie® fihanciol Gfficar's Respontibiiites, the Chief
Fincne'al Officer is respomsible fer the propaoraton of the finarcial stalemenls and for being salisfizd that they give a
frue aind fair viesa of the income ond expenditure and coth flioows far the finoeciol year and the financiol position o et
fae end ¢f the linancial vear, My i@porsiollity i 1o qudit Ihe staterrent of accourts in cocorcance wilth the Lozal
Guvamment {Mothern heland) Grder 2005 and the Locol Governmenl Code ol Audil Fraclice issued by Ihe Chigl
Lozal Govemman! Audilor. | conducted my oudil noccordance with Intemafioral Stondards on Auditng (UK and
raland]. Tnase slanderds require ma ond my stalf to comaiy with tha Auditing Proclices Board's Etbical Sfondords for

Auchitors.

Scope of the audit of the siatement of accounls

An aunil invelves abilaining evidence anout the ovounls and disclosures in the inoncial stoterments sufficient e gve
reasonabls assurance ol he financial siatements are ree rom rmatenal misstatemen:, wheler caused by ffaud or
error, This includes an assessment of! wasther lhe accounling policies ars appropricte (o *he s crcumstances and
have kean consistanty applied and adequalely disclosed; the recsonablengs: of dignificant accounling aslimates
made by ; and the ouerall presentation of the finaacial statements. In oddition | read aoll the financial orc non-
finonclal Infgrmalion ir the Stolemert of Accounts 1o Ideniity materal Inconslitencles with the audlied fingnciol
staternants. If | become aware of any cpparent mcteral missialeronts of incongstenc as | congder the implications

for my report,

Cpginien
In my opinion;
. ihe fircncial stotements gives a frug and fair view. In cccorcance with relevant tegal and statutony
regairemenls wnd lhe Code of Puclice on loval Authafly Accounding in le United Kngcom of The

lironcicl oosiicn of the Newry, Moums and Cowr Distict Council os al 31s! March 2019 and its incorme and
expendturz far the year then enced and

. thie fironcial stofaments hove besn propery prapored in occovdonce with the Locol Goverrment
[Accounts and Aucil) Begulal ans (Morhemn Ireland) @S and the Depantment for Commurines airsclions
issued Ihereurder.

Cpirlon on othe! mofters
I my opimian tha information civen in the Noralive Report far the inoncial yeor anded 315t Mareh 2019 5 consistent
with the finoncial siaternents.

T



Matters on which | report by exception E
| have nathing ba repor in respect cf the lollowing matiers which | report te you il ir my ooinicn:

the Annual Governarce Statement

o does not reflec! compliance with the Code of Practice on local Authodly Accounting n the
Unitod Kingdom 201819,

o daes nol comply with proper practice: specifisd by the Department for Communilies;

o iy misleading or incoadistert with other information | om awarz of from my audil, o

. gdeguate accounting reccrds have not been kepl; or
e Slolemenl of Accounls is not in cgreement with the accountihg records o
I have not received all of the information ard explanations | requirs for my audit,

Certlticale

| celily hal | hove comple'ad be cudit of The accounts of The Jn cccordance with the requirerents of the Local
Gevermment {Morthem Irefand) Order 2008 ond tha Llecal Govemment Code of Audit Fractice issued by the Chisf
Local Govermmenrt Auditor,

Local Govemment duditor
Morthem Irelond audi Cffice
10¢ Universily Street

Bedfas:

BT 1EU

Dated:

-















Newry, Mourmne and Down District Council
Noles to the Financial Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statermen: of Accounts summars=s the Council's fransaclions for the 2013/1% financial
year and i's posifion ot the yearenc of 37 Marnch 2019, The Councl is reguired 1o prepare
on annual Statement of Accounts ir o form directed by the Deporment Tor Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 {7) cnd (8} in the loco Government (Accounls and Audil)
Regulalors (Norlhem rddand) 2015 in accordunce with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comgrise the Code of Praclice or Locol Aulharily Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018017, supporled by nlemalicnal Finarcial Reporting Slancards
(IFRS). The accounting convention acopted in the Statement of Accounts is princlpally
hislerical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categores of non-current assets and
financial Instruments.

The Cace of Practice on Local Autharity Accounfing in the Uinitad Kingoam 201718 akao
reciires cisclosura in respect af;

surmmary of Significant Accounting Pclicies
Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Aclivity is accounted for In the year that it takes place. ot simply when cash payments are
maae of received. In parficular:

Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for servicas or the provision of

- supplies are recorded as expendiure when they are consumed - where [hereg is  goo
between the dote suoglies are received and ther consumption, they cre caried as
invenicries on ke Bulonce Sheel.

- Expenses in relation to servicas received (including services pravided by emplaveas) are
recorded as expendiiure when the services are receivad rather thon when payments e
made.

- Inferast receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively os income and cxpenditurs on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrumeant rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the centract.

- Where revenue ord expenditure have been recognised but cash has not boen received
or paid, a cebtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 3alance Sheet.
Whare it is doubtful that debits will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a
charge made ic revenue for the income thet might rot be collected.

Acquisitions and Disconfinued Operations

Mewry Moume arnd Down Dis'ric! Council has nol ncguired ops-ations |or hansferred
vperations undesr machinery of governmant arangermants) during the financlal year.

rF



i

iv)

vi)

The Councli nas not discontinued any operations [or fransfered operation: under
combinations of public sector bodies) durng the linanciol yeaor.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviaws

As each of 1he legacy councils had substantially completad is Single Status. Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, Coundil has not acquired an openirg provision for such
matters. As tne staff of the fomer lzgacy councils and those franstering In from the
Depcrimeant of the Environment's Planning Service are pratected by the Transfar of
Protected Uindertiakings Act [Morthem reland) 2006 (TUPE), Ccuncil has not sought to ameno
these employees' terms and conditions of employment. Appropricte provision wll be made
for ary financial consequences of employass terms and conditions as ard when recuired.

Caosh and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financicl institutions repoyable
witnout penalty on notice of rot more than 24 hours, Cash eguivalents are highly liquid
invasimenis that mature in [specified periog, no mere than three months] or less from the
date of acouisiion and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with

irsignificar! nsk of change in valuzs,

In the Cash Slow Statement, cosh ard cash eguivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis
Ihal cre repayable on demand and form an intearal parl of the Council's cosh
mancgemsant,

Conlingent Assets

A contingent csset arises whera an event hos taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the cccurence or ctherwise of uncertain
futura events not wholly within the conlirol of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Bolance Shest but disclosed In a note to tha
accounts where it is probatle that thers will be aninflow of econormric benetfits or service
potentiol.

Confingent Liabilities

A cantingant liab lily anses whara an event has takan place that gives the Council o
paossitle obligation whose sxisience wil only be canfirmed by the occunence or otherwise
of uncertain future everts not wholly within the conirol of the Counc . Cortingent liakil ties
aleo arise in circumstances whare a provision would otherwise be made kut either it is not
probable that an cutflow of resources will be requited or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measurad ra iably.

Confingent llabilities are not reccanised In the Balance Sheel bui disclosed in a note to the
ceccounts.



Vi)

Emplayee Benefits

Short-term employes bendgfits are tross due to be tettled whaolly within |12 months af the
yaar end. Thay includs such benelits ¢s wagss and salades, paid annual leave and poid
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary bansfi's {e.g. cars; for cunent emoloyees, and are
recognised as an expansie in ‘he year in which employeas render service to the Council,
An accucl is made for the cost of holiday ertitierments (o any form ot leave, eg time off in
lieu] earried by employees but not taken belore the yecr-end which employees cor carry
foreward info the nexl linancial year. The accrual is made of the wags and sakary rates
dpelicable in the ‘ollowing accouniing year, being the period in which the employese takes
the senefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus ar Deficit on the Provision of Services, bur then
reversed oul thiouch The Moverment in Reserves Slatemenl so that holiday enlifliemenls are
charged lo revenye in the financial year in which the holiday absence ocours,

rfermination benefits

Temnination benefits are amounts payable as a resul’ of a decision by *he Council to
terminafe an officer's employment belore the normal refirement date or an officer's
decsion to accept voluntory redundancy in cechange for those bencils and are charged
on cr accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to o
corporate service segment at the earlizr of when the Councll can no longer withdraw the
offar of thcse benefits or when the Courcil recogrises costs for a restructurirg. Where
lermination berefits involve "he enhancemenl ol pensions, stalutory provisions require the
General Fund 3aance to be charged with the amount payabls by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, nol the amount calculoted occording to the relever|
gocouniing standards. In the Movemert in Reserves Statement, appropraticns ars reguirsd
o and (rom e Pensions Reserve o remove Ihe nolional debils and credits Tor pension
enhoncement termination banefits and replcce them with delots for the cask pad o the
pension fund and pensioners and gny such amounts poycble but unpaoid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Morthern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Pension Tund administered by the Northern Felana Local Govermment Cfiicers'
Superanniuation Commit-es. The scheme provides defined benefits ‘o memoers [relirement
lurng sums and pensions), eamed as employees worked for the Council,

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northerm relond Local Govemnmment Officers Pension Fund is noccourted for s a defined
benelils scheme.

The llabilties of the MNorthem relanc Local Government Officers Pension Fund atffributable to
tna Counci are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the prajected unit
method -i.e. an assessmen of the future payments that will be made inrelcticn 1o
retiremen” banefils eamead 1o daofe by employees. basad on ossurntions about mortality
rates, empioyes urnaver rates | elc. and projections of orojected eornings for curent
emMployees.
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Liabilities are discounted fo their value a° curen’ prices, usirg a discount rate based on the
Ann Hawilt (GBP Select AA Curve aver the duration of the Emplover's iabilities.

Ihe assels of the Morthem Ireland Local Gevernmeni Officers’ pension fund atrributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoled securites - current bic price
unquoled securities - prefessional estimate
property — market value

unitised secuwrities - curren: bid price

The change in the ne pensions liability is anclysed into seven components:

The change in the net pensions liabiity is analysea into the follewing components:

Service cosl comprising:

Current Service Cost - the increase in licbkilites as a resull of years of service earned this year -
alocated in the Comprehensive Income ard Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employass worked

Past Service Cost = the increase in Babililies as o resull of a scheme amandmenl or
curtailment whose effecr relates 1o years of service eumed in earlier years - detitec 1o "he
Surplus or Deficit on the Provisicn of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Experdiiure
Stotements.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expendilure

Net interes! on Ihe nel delined benefil liaolity [asset). — e net Interest expense for the
Councl, the change duing Ihe period in the net defined beneil labllity iasset) that arises
from Ihe passage of lime charged to the fincrcing and rvestment Income and
Experdilure line of the Comprahensive Income and Expenditura Statement - this is
calculated by applying tha discount rate used to measure the refinad henefit ahligation ot
the beginning of the perind to the net dafined benefit linbil ty (asset] at the beginning of the
period - faking inlc account any changes in the net detined berefit liability (asset) duing
the perod os a result of contibution and benefit cayments,



Within Other Comprehensive Income und Expendilure (Remecsurements)

The Refum on Plan Assels - excluding amounts recoanised in ~he Net Inferest or the Net
Delined Benelil Liability [Asset) charged fa the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Incoms and Expenditure. This Includes interest, dividends and other income derived from
the plan asseis. together wih reaised and unrediised goins or Insses on he plan nssets, leds
any cosls of meraging plan assets. and any fax payanle by the plan ilsalf ather thon fax
included In the actuarial assumptions used "o measure the present valaz of the defined
benefit ohigation

Actuanal Gans and Losses - changes in the net pensions labilily thot arise because events
have not caincided with assumptions mace at the last octuarial valuation or becaute the
actuaries have upaated their assumpticrs. charged to the Persions Reserves as Other
Comprehansive Income and Expenditure.

Within the Movement in Reservas Siatement Approprialions

Conlributiors by 3cheme Participants - the increase in schemes liakilities and assets due fo
payments into the scheme by employess (where increased conribulon noreases - oersion
due to the employee in the fulure),

Conhibuticns by the Emgloyer - Ihe increase in scheme assets due to payments Into the
scheme by the emplover,

In relation to retirement terefls. statutory provisions require the Ganeral Funa baance to
be charged with the amouni payaole oy the Councl to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year. rat the amount calculated according to the relevant nccounting
standards. In the Movement in Resarves Statement, this meons that there are transters to
and from the Pensions Keserve to remave the notonal debits and credits “or refirement
henetts and replace them with debifs tor the cash paia o ke pansion fund and penscrers
and any such amounts payable oot unpaid at the yecr-end. The nagative balance that
ansas on the Pensions Resarve thareby measures the bensficial impact to the General Fund
of being required to account for refiremeni benefits on the bosis of cash fiows rather than o
benefts are sarmed by emplovees,

Discrationary 2enetils

Tha Council also has restricted powers to moke discretionery awards of ralirement benefils
in the evant of early retiraments. Any Fabilifies estmated to arise ¢s a result of an awarg ic
cry member of staff are accrued n the vear ol the dacsior to make the award and
accountad for using the same policies that are applied te the Narthem Ireland Local
Govemment Officers' pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS) Pension Scheme

As aresut of Locol Government Refarm on | April 2015 sioft thot transterred tram Central
Government ta the Councl retained membership af the Nartharn Irelerd Civil Service (NICS)
Fensian 3chemea. The schemes provides defined benefis to members raflirement lump sums
ond pensions). However, “he arrangemen’s for the MICS Persion Scheme mean thet
liahilities for tnese benefite cannot ordinariy be identified specifically to the Council. The
icheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contibufion scheme and no
iability ier fulure paymen's of benelits is recogrized r the Balonce Sheel.
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Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Evenisafter the Balance theet dale are thoss events. bolh favaurasle and untavaurable,
that occur belween the ena of the reporting period ond the date when he Sinotement of
Accounts is authoriced forissua, Two typas of evente can be identitied:

- those that provide evidance of conditions that existed atf the end ot the reporting period
= the S'aterment of Accaunts is adjusted to reflect such svents

- those that are indicative of conditiors that arose after the reporting period —tha
Statement of Accounts is not adiusted to reflect such events, but where o category of
evenis would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nalure of the
evenls and their estimated financial effect.

Tre Statement of Accounls may suosequenily oe adjusted uo to the dafe when they arc
aulherised for issue. This date will be recarded on the Sratement of Accounts and is usuclly
the date ‘he Local Government Auditerissues the cerfificate and opinion. Where material
adjusiments are mace in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authordsalion for ssue are nol refllecled in fhe
staterment of Accounts.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and experse are material, their nalure crd amount is disclosea
sepcrately, either on the foce cf the Comprehensive Income and Exgpancifure Statermeant or
in the notes to the accounts, cepending on how significant the ilems are to an
understanding of the Council’s financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Frior period adustmants may arise as aresul’ of a change in accounting policies o ‘o
cormect a maleral ermor. Changes in accounting eslimales ae accounled lor prospectivaly,
i.e. in the cumrent and fulure years affected by “he charge and do not give rise 10 a prion
penod adiustmenl.,

Changes In accounting policles are only made when reguired by proper azcounting
prachices or the change provides more reliobe orf relevant information chaout the effect of
transactions. othar events and condibions on the Couna s inancial posiion or financiol
perfarmance. Whera o chonge s made, tis appied ratroipactively (unlass stated
atherwise) by cdjusting opening balances and comparative amoun's for the prior padod as
if the new policy hod chwoy: beer applied.

mMatericl emors discovered 'n prior period figures are comected refrospeciively by amending
opering bolances and comparative amounts for the pror pericd.

Financial Instruments

Fingncial llablifies are recogrized on the Balance Sheet when the Councll becomes a party
to the contrcctual provisions of a financial instrument and are inifially measured af fair value
and dare carried at their amortised cast. Annua charges 1o the Financing and Investmeant
income and Fxpendifure ine in the Comprenensive Income and Expenditune Siatament for
intarest payable are hasaa on the camying amaunt of the liabiiy, multizlied by tha
effectiva rate ot interest tor tha instrument. The ettective interest rate is the rate thet excctly
discounts estimated Tuture cash payments aver thea life of e instruraent to the amount ar
which it was onginally recognised.
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For most of the Lomowings thal the Coundil kas, this means thot the amount preserted in
Ihe Balance Sheet is the outsianding principal repayable {plus accrued interest): and
interest chorged fo the Comprehensive Income and BExpenditure Statement is the amourt
paycble for tre vear according to the loan agreement.

Hawever. the bonds issuad by the Council in 20137 1Y are coared at a lawer amortised cost
than the autstancing prncipal, and interest is charged of a marginaly higher effective rate
ot intarest than the rate poyable to bondhelders, o a material amount of costs incurad in
Its ssue is being fnanced over the life of the stock,

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditura Statemert, regulations alow the impacl on the Genercl Fund Balanca to be
spread over fulure vears. Tna Council hos a policy of sprecding the gain or loss over tha
term that was remeining on the loan against which the premium was pavable er discoun®
receivab g when it was repaid, The reconcliation of amounts charged to the
Caomprehersive Inceme and Zxpenditure Statement to the net charge required against the
Cencral Fund Balance is managed oy a fransfer to or from the Fnancial Instrumenrts
Adjustment Account in the Movemert in Reserves Staternsnt.

Financial Assets

Financicl assets cre classifiec bosed on a classification and measurermnant apgroacn thot
reflects lhe business modal for holding the financal assefs and their cashflow characteristics.
Trere ara three main classes of financial assets mecsured at:

- amortised cost

- fair value Through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other compreheansive income (FYOCI)

The Council's Eusingss model is to hold invesimanis o collect confraclual cash Nows.
Financial assels are therefore clessilied us amorlised cosl, except for those whose
confraciucl paymenis are not sclely payrmen| of principal and inlerest (ie where ‘he cosh
lows do nol ake e form of a basic debt instrament).
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Fincncial assets mecsured of amertised cost are recogn sed on the Balance Shest whean the
Council bacomes a parly to the confractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
inilially mecsured at fair value. They are subsequently measured ot their omortised cost.
Annual credits 1o the Financrg and Investment Income erd Expenditure Ire in the
Cemprehensive Incorms and Expenditure Slatement for interest receivable are based on
the carrying amount of the asszt muliiplied by the effeclive rate of interest lor the
nstrument. Fer most of the finarcial assats held by the Council, this means that the amount
oresented in the Balance Sheaet is the outstanding principa receivable |plus accued
interest) and interest cred'ted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amounil
receivab e for the yearin the loan agreement,

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in fhe
Comprehersive Income aord Expendituie Statemen! al g marginal y highey effective e i
inferesi ihon the alereceivable rom lhe voluniary organisations, with the differerce
serving lo increase the amorlised cos! of the loan in ke Balonce Sheel. Statutory provisions
reguire that ine impact of soff loans cn the General Fund Balance s the interast receivable
for the financlal year - the reconciliation of ameunts debited and cradited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure statemert to the ret gain required against ihe
General Furd 3aiance s managed by a fransfer o o from the Finoncial Instruments
Adlusiment accountin the Movement in ¥aierves Sialemeant

Any gains and losses thal arise on the deracognition of an asse- are crediled or debils to the
Financing and Investment Income and Cxpenditure line in ths Comprehensive Income and
Cxperdilure Staternant.

Government Granls and Contributions

whnzather pala on account by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third parly
contribJtions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is recsonahle

assurarce that:

- The Council will compy with tha conditions affoched to the oayments, and
- the grants ar confributions will be receaived.

Amaounts reccgnised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been
satisfed. Condilions are stipulations "hat specify that the fulure eccnom c beasfits or
scrvice petential embodiad in ths asset in the formr of the grant or contribution are requirsd
fo be consumec by the recipient as specified. or future economic benefits or service
potential must oe returnsd to the fransteror.

Monies advanced as grants and cortibutions for which conditions have nol been salisfied
are comed in the Balance Shest us areditors. When condilions are saiisfiec, the granr o
contibufion s credited to the relevani service line (athibutoble revenue cranls and
contribufions) o Taxalion and Nen-3peciliz Grant Inzome (nonging-lenced revenue grants
ard afl copital granls) In the Comprehers ve Inccme and Expenditure statement,
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Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure
Satement, they are reversed cut of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Sratement. Where the grant has yer 1o be used to finance capital esgerdilure, it is posted
to the Capial Grants Unapgliea Reserve. Where it has been apglied, il is posied lo he
Capital Adjustrment Account, Amounts in the Copital Gronts Unapclied Reserve ore
franmsienaedc 1o The Copilal Adjusimen! Accoun! once they Fave beasn applied lo fund
copital axpendtae,

Intangible Assels

Expendilure on nor-monelary assets (kal do not have physical subsiance bul are canitrolled
Ly he Council as aresull of ous! svenls (e, solbvare icences) s caoitalised whern it is
expecied that fuiure economic benefts or service potentlal will flow from the intangible
assel to the Council,

Internclly cenerated cssels cre capilalised wnere it is demonstakle thal the project (s
lechiricaly leasblz and is inlended to be compleled (with adeguale resowrces being
available) ard the Councll will be able to generase ‘uture economic beneflts or dellvar
service potential by being able 1o sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it
can be measured reliably as altribulable 1o the asse’ and restricted 10 thal incurred duding
the developmaat phose [resanrch expendifure is not capitalisea)

intanginie assets are measurad Inticlly at cost, Amounis are only revalued where the fair
valuz of ine assets held by “he Courcil can be defermined by reference o an aclive
market. Inpractize. no inlargible asset held by the Councl meels this criterion. and they
are theretcre caried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount ol an infangibie assal s
amartised aver it useful life to the relevant service ling(s) in the Comprenensive Income and
Expendiiure Statermant. An asset is tested tar impaimeni whenever thera 15 an indication
thot the asset might be impairea - ony losses recagnisad are potted to the relevant service
ling(s} in the Comprehensive Income and Expenciture Stalement. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or abandonment of an intanglble osset is posted to the Other Operating
Expenciture ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Stalement,

Wazre sxpenditure oninlargibe assets qualifies as capital sxpenditure for stalutory
purposes, amortisation, impalrment losses and disoosal galns and losses are not osrmitted to
have animpact on the Genercl Fund Balance, The gains and kosses are therelore reversed
ol ol Ihe General Fund Balonce inthe Movermenl in Reserves Slalement and posted o the
Capital Adjustimenl Acccun! ond (for cny sale proceeds grealer than £10,000) the Capital
Receipis Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventari=s are included in the Rolance Sheet af the inwer of cost ard net realisnale volle.
Ine cost of inventonas s asigned using the FAFD casting fommula.

Long-term coniracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the sutplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideratlon cliocated o the performance obligatiors
salisted based on ‘he gaonds ar savices ransferred o the service recipient durrg the

financial yecr,
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Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are vsed solely to earn renfals andfor for cagitel
apprecialicn. The definition s not met if the oropery is used in any way Ic faciitale the
delivery of services cr groduction of goods or Is held for sale.

investment gropertes are maasured initially af cost and subseguently at fair value. being
the price that would be recelved to sell such an asset in an ordery fransaction netweean
market paricipants a* the measurenhle date. As o non-finaoncial asset, investment
properties are maasured at highest and best us2. Properties are nol deprecinted but are
revaliedd annually according to market conditions ot the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaiudtion are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Experdifure lingin the
Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to
gains and losses on disposal.

Rental received inrelaltion o invesimen! prcperliss are agedited to tn2 Financing and
Investment Incoms line in the Compranensive Income and Expenditurs Statement ona
iesult in o gain for the Generol Fund Balance. Fowever. revaluation and disposal gains and
losses are nol paimitled by sratutory arangements to have an impact on the Gereral Fund
Balance. The gnins and |osses are therefore reversed oul of the Zeneral ~und Balance in
lhe Mavement in Reserves Stotement and piosted to the Capital Adjustiment Account ord
ihe Copital Recaipts Resarne.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

Tre Landfill Allowances Scheme cperates under the Landfill Allowances Schame (Northern
Ireland) Regulafions 2005, Lecal Authorities are dllocated arrual target figuras for the
maxmum amount of biodegradoble munic pal waste that con be sent to landfill bul there
are no tracable allewances. itis nel a 'cap and trade’ scheme since lordfill allowances
are not fradable. For this reason. lancfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the
Balance Sheet.

Leases

Lecsas are clussTiec as finance leases where lhe leims ol the lewss ransfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental fo ownership of the property. plant cr equipment from tha
lessor lo the lesee. All olher eases gre classified as cperafing leases.

Where a lease covers both lond and buildings, the land and bulldings elzments cre
considerad separately for clossification,

Amangements that do not have the legel status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are cccounted far uncer this policy where fulfilment of the
arrangement is depandant on the use of specific assels
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The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Froperty, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised cr 1he Balance
Shee! af the commencement of the leasz2 at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception
(or the present valua ol Ihe minimum lease payments, if lower). Tha asset recognised is
matched by o liabilty far the ohligatian ta pay the lessor. Initial direct casts of the Council
are added o the comy ng amount of the asset. Premiums paid an entry inta o lecsa are
applied to wifing aown the lease liobilly. Contingent rents ore chorged os expensas in the
pearinc in which they are ircured.

Lease payments are cpporioned between:

a. a charge for the acguisition of the intarest in the property plant or equicmenr - appliec to
write down the lease liability, and

b afinance charge (debited to tha Financing and Investment Income and Experditure line
in the Comprehermsive Income and Expenditurs Stalement)

Froperty, Flonf and Equipment recognised urder finance legses is uccounled for usng the
polcies opclied genemnally to such assals, subject to depreciaiion being chorged over Ihe
leose leorn il Ihis s shorler than Ihe asset's eslimoated usefu! lif2 (whers owneshp of “he osset
does not fransler 1o the Council at the end of the lease perlad).

The Council is nol reguired loaise dislict rales lo cove deorecialion or revaluation and
impairmesnt losses orising on lecsad assets. Insteod, o prudent annual contrioution Is made
fromrevenue fowards the deemed captal invesiment In accordance with statutary
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and Impakment losses ore therefore
substiluted by a ravenue contibulinn in the Genercl Fund Ealanca. oy way of an adjusting
transccticn with the Capital Adustment Account in the Movement in Resaves Statement
far the diferance between the bwo,

Operaling leases:

kentals paid under operatirg leases are charged i the Comprehensive Income ord
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting Irom use of the leasea
prooerty, plont or equioment. Charges are made on a siraight-line basis over the fife of the
lease, even if this does not malch the potter of pavments {e.g. thers is a rent-fres period of
the commencement cf the lease).
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Leasec

Whers the Council granids o financs lease over a progetly o an ilem of glanl or equipment,
the relevan: assel is wiitten out of ihe Balance Sheet as o cizposal. Al the commencement
of the lewse, the cany'ng amounl of the assel 'n Ihe Balonce Sheel (whelher Property. Plant
and Eguipment or Assets Held far Sale) Is written off to the Other Opeiating Expenditure Iine
in Ihe Comprehensive Income ard Expenditure Stotement as part of the gain or loss cn
dsposal. A goin, represerting the Coundil s net investment in the lease, is credited to the
same ling in the Comprehensive Income ond Bxpendifure Statement olse as part of the gain
or loss on disposcl {i.e. netted afl agarst the comying value of tha asset ot the time of
dispnaal), motched by a lease aset (ong ‘erm dektor] in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are appertianed behwesn:

a. a chargs for the ocguisition of the iirterest in the oroperty - cpplied 1o wiite Gown 1he
lease debitor togeher with ony premiums received, and

b, finunce income (credited o he Financing and Inveshnen! income and Exgerditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiune Stalement).

Tre gan credi*ed lo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposol &
not permitied by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to ba
freated as o capitnl receipt. Where o premum has been received, this is posted out of the
General Fund Balkance to the Capital Receipls Reserve in “he Movement in Reservas
statement, Where the amcunt due in ralahon to the lease asset is fc be s2tled by the
povment of rendeals in fufure firancial vears, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to
the Deierred "opifal Receipls Reserve in the Maovement in Reserva; Statement. Whan the
futura rantal; are paid, the elemens far the capital receipt for the dispeeal of the assetis
used to write down the lease debtor. At this poin', tna deferred capital receips are
transferred to tnhe Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is nol a charge against Distrct rates, as the cost of non-
current assels is ‘ully proviced for under separate arrcrgements for capital financing.
Amounts are therefors approproted to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movemenl in Reserves Statement,

The Covuncil gs Lessor - Opergling Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over o preperty or an ilem of plant or
eguiprent, the assetis retainad in the Balonce Sheet. Rental income is crediled to the
Other Operating Expendilure ling in the Comprehensive Income ang Expenditure
Statement. Credits ara made on a siraight-line basis over the ffe of the 1sase, even if this
dees not match the pattern of pavments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
cemmercement of the lease). Initia! direct costs incured in negotiating and crrarging the
lease are added to ‘he camying omount of tha relevant asse” and charged a5 an expense
over the lease term on the same bas’s as rental income.
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Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

wWhen it hecomes prooable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a tale frorsaction rother than “hrougn ils cartincing use, it 5 reciassified
os an Assat Held for Sal2. The assat s revaced immediately before reclassification and then
coried al the lower of this anount and fair vadue less casis 1o sall. Where there is a
subtequent decrease to fair value less costs 1o sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operaling
Expenditure line in fhe Comprehensive Income and Zxpenditure Statement, Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recagnised losses in the
Surglus or Deficit an fhe Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged an Assets Held for
Sale.

If cesets na longar meat the criteria 1o be clawsifed os assets hald for scle, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its cairying amount
bafore they were clossified as held for sale: adjusted for deoreciation, amortisalion or
revaluations that woule have been recognized had they not baan classified os held for sale,
and their recovarable amount at the date of the decision not fo sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped ars not reclassifiesd as assets hele fer sale.

When an ¢ssel s dispesad of, or decommissicred. the camying cmount of the gsset in the
Balance sheel whether propety, plant crnd egulpment or assets held for sale) is written off
1o Ihe Other Operating Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Expendliure
Statement as part af the goin or loss on disposal. Feceipts from disposals (if any) are
crecited 1o the same lire in the Comprehensive Incame ard Expenditure Statemeant also as
part of the goin ar lnss on dsposal fi.e natted off against the comying value of the asser ot
the: time of disposall. Ay revaluction gains accumilated tar the asiet in the Revaluation
Reserve are transtefred to the Capital Adjustmant Account,

Amounts received for a disposal cre cotegorised as capital receipts and crediled to the
Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipis ars appropriated to the Reserve friom the General fund
Balaaze in the Movement in Resaves Stalement.

The wiitten-off value of d'soosals is not a charge aganst dslrict rates, as the cost of non-
current asses is fully provided for under separate amangements for capiial financing.
Amounts are agoropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movermrent in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and supgor services are charged fo service segmerts In
accordance with the Councll's amangemants far cccountabliity ong linancial cedormance,

]



Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets thal have physical substance and are held for Lse in the preduction or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that cre expectad
to be usec during more than one fnancial year are classified as Property, Plant ard
Equipment.

Recognilion

Crpendilure on the acquisifion, creation or enhancement of property, plant and ecuipment
is capiiglised on an accruwals basis, provided that it is proboble that the futue 2conomic
bznefils or service potential associated with the iter will flow to the Council and the cost of
Ihe Ttem can be measured reliably, Experdilure that mainlaing bu! does nol cdd 1o an
asset's potential o deliver future economic benefits or service ootential i.e. repairs and
mainterance) s charged gs an expense when it is incurec.,

Measurement

Assezts are inilially measued al cost, comprising;

a. lhe purchose price

b. any costs atfibutatle to cringing the asset to the location and condilon necessary for 't
ic be capable of eperating in the marner intenced by managemeant

c. the Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling cnd remov ng the tem and t’E!I‘Cﬂ'iI‘iQ the site
on which it iz located

Tre Coundil does nol capitalise borowing ccsts incurad whilst assets are under
constructicn.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purcnase is deemed to be ils bair value, unless the
acquisition does no® have commercial suostance (is il will not lead 1o a variation in the
cash liows of the Coundil), In the latter case. where an asset is acgured via an exchange,
the cost of the acquisition is the camrying amcunt of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated aszets are measured initially ot far value. The cifference bebtweazn farr volue ard
any comwideralion paid is crediled 1o The Tazalion ard Non-Specilic Gran! Income Tre of
the Comprehensive income ard Expenditurs Staterment, unless the donation has been
made conditionclly. Unti condilions are sutisiied, IFe gar s held in The Donoled Assels
Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprerensive income and Expenditure
Statement. they are raversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment
Account in tne pMovement in Eeserves Stotement.

Assels gre then carried in the Bolance Sheel using the following rmeasuremant ooses:

- Infrastruciure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciaied nistorical
cost

- surplus assets - the curent value measurermrant base i far value, estimated a* highest anc
best use from a marce! paticipant's perspectve

- all ather assats - fair value, determinea s the amount thot waould be paid for the csset in
its existing vse [ex sting vs2 value - FLIV)

Where there is no market based eviderce of fair value because of the specialist nature of
an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used s an estimate of falr value.,

Assels includec in the Balance Sheet at curent value are revalued sutticiently regularly to
ensure that their carying amount is net materially different from their current value at the
year-end, but as a minmum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceplionally, gains mighi
be credited to the Comorehensive Income and Exoenditure S-atement where they arise
from the reversa of a loss praviously charced o a service.



The Eevcluarion Reserve contains revalualion gains recognized since | Aprl 2008 only, the
dote of ifs forma implementaticr. Gdins arsing oefore thet date have beer consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed af each yaar-end as to whetaer thera 5 any indication thet an asset
may neimpaited. Whera indications exist ond any possinde differences ore estimate 1o be
matericl, the recoverable amount of the csiet i; esfimated and, wharse this is less than the
camying ameount of the asser, an imparmrert loss is recognised for the shorffall.

Wherz impairmant lasses are idertificd, they are acceunted for by

a, where there is ¢ ba'ance of revalualion gaing for the asset in the Revaluction Reserve, the
carying amaunt of the assel is written down against that balance (up to the amaount of the

azcumulated gains),

b. where theres s no balonce in the Revaluation Reserve cr cn insufficient balance, the
carrying amownr| of The assel s wril len down agains! he relevanl service linefs) in lhe
Comprehensive Income crd Expenditure Statement.

Where an mpairmrent [oss is reversed subsequentiy, the reversal B credited to the relevant
service ire(s) in the Compranansive Income and Expenditura statement. up to the amaouni
af the onginal o, adjusted lor depreciahaon that would hava heen charged if the foss hod
not been recagnised,

Depreciafion

Ceprecialion is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounis over thair usaful lives. An exception is made for
assets without a determinable fini'e vseful ife (i.e. reenoid lord and certain Community
Assets) ard aszets that are notf vet avaiable for use (i.e. asse’s under construction),

Deprecafion is calcaated on the following basas:

- dwellings and other bullcings - stralght-ine allocaticr over the usefy if2 of tha property as
estimaled by the valuer

-wvehicles. plart, turniture and equipment - a perceniage of the value of aach class of
assats in the Holance Sheal as advised by o suitably qualified officer

- infrastructure - sirgight line allocation over 25 yaows

Compenentisation

Wnzre an item of Property, Plant ard Equiprment asset kas mojor comporerts whoss costis
significan! inrelafion to the totol cost of the ftem, the components dre deoreciated

separaely.

Revaluafions

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference betweer
cumrent value depreciation charged cor assets and the depreciation that weould hove been
chargeable based on their historical cost being trons‘errad each year from the Revaluation
Kescwve to the Capital Adjustment Account,
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assels are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities Thot are held and maintained principally for Iheir confribution lo
knowledge and culture,

Heritage Assefs are those astets thal are intended to be preserved in trust for fuiure
generafions because of their cultural, environmental or historic associatiors. They would e
neid by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relalion to the mantenance of
herilage.

Pravisions

Providons are made whera an avant nos token ploce thar gives the Council 0 lega ar
canstructive onligation that probably reguires seltement by a fransfer of econcmic benafils
of service potential, ond o reliokle estimate can oe made of the amount of the obligation.
Forinstance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could aventually resu't in the
making of a setilemert cr the paymeant of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expensc e the appropriale service line in the Comprehensive
Income anc Expenditure Statement in the year thal the Council becomes aware of the
obligafion, and measured at the best estimate at ‘the balance sheer date of the
expenditure required fo settle the ebligetien, taking in‘o azcount relevant risks and
uncerlaintiz;.

When payments are eveniually mace, they are crarged to the pravision camied in the
Batance Sheetl. Fsimated setflemants are reviewed ot the =nd of each tinoncial year-
where it Becomes less than probakle that a transter of economic hengfits will now he
raquirad (or o Inwer sattiement than articiparad s made), the provision is reverses and
credited back to the relevont senvice.

Wnare some or all of Ihe payment required fo settle a provision is expecied to oe recovered
from another party |e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for tke
ralevert sevice if it is viftually certain that rambursement will be received if the Courail
setfics the obligafion.

Additional policy detail required whers a Council has made provision for onsrous contracts
cr restructuring coste and where discounting of the amount to setfic the obligation is
required,

Reserves

The Council sets cside specific amounts as reserves lar fulure pelicy purposes o to cover
contingencies. Reserves are crealed by transfering amounts out of *he Gereral Fund
Balance. When expenditure to be financed frem a reserve s incumrred. it is charged to the
approgriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision oF Services in
the Comorchensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The tessrve s then tansfered
bock into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against Cisticl Rates for
the expanditure.

Cerdin reseryas are kant to manages the accounfing procasses for nan-current assets,
financial instruments. rietiremant benefits ana emplnyee benefits nnd do nat represent
Jiable resoutces for the Council - "hesa reservas are explainec in the relevant note fo the

accounts.
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Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assels

Services, supoort sarvices and ‘rading accounts are debited w'th tha followirg amounts to
record the cost of holding non-cumrert assels durirg *he year:

a. depreciation altribulcble to the assets used by the relsvant service

2. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used oy the service where there are ro
aczcumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off
c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attibutable to the service.

The Council is nol required to raise Cittict Rates ta cover depreciation, revaluation cing
impairment losses or omoertisafions. However, it is required to moke an annwal conlibulion
from revenue |o conlibule lowards the reduction in its overal borowing requrement
[egual to eilher an amounl calcululed un g prucen| basis de‘ermined by the Coundil in
accordance with statuicry guidance]. Depreciation. revaluation and Imoairment losses
and amor lisalion are therefare reploced by thea contribution In the General Fund BEalance
Iminimum revenue orovision (MRF]) or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances).
by way of an adjusting fransaction with the Caopital Adjustment Account in the Mavemeant in
Reserves Statament for the difference hetween the twe.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expendilure incurred cduring the year that may ke capitalised under s atutory provisiors but
that does rot resull n the creation of a non-cuTent asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement in the
year, Where the Council has determined fo meest the cost of this expenditure from existing
capital resources or by bomowing, a tronsfer in the Moverment in Reserves Stalemenl ram
the General Fund Balance 1o ke Cogital Adjustment Account then reverses oul the
amounts charged, so that there s no impac on the level of Dislic! Roles,

Value Added Tax

VAT payable sincluded gr an expense only to the extent that it s not recoverablz from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Custoris. VAT receivable s excluded from incame.,

[=s]



*xix|

Faoir Value Measurement

The Council measures scme of ils nor-inancial assefs such as surplus ossets ond Invesimeni
properfies and some of s financial Instruments such as eqully shareholcings [other tinancial
inshhumenls us applicablz| ol fak volue al 2och reporfing aate, Fair value is the price that
would be received i0 sell cn asset or poid to transter a liablity in an arderly rinsaction
belween morket parficipants at the meosurement date. The tair value meosurement
ossumes that the fransaction to sell the asset or trans’er the liohility takes ploce aithar:

o) in the princioal marke! Tor Ihe asszt or dabili'y, ar
o) in Ihe absence of a principcl market. in the most advaniageous market for the asset or
by,

The Ceuncil measures the for value of an asset or liab ity using the assumptions that market
participants wou'd use wher pricing the asset or igblity, ossuming thatl morket participanis
actin their economic best interest.

When mecsuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council ~akes inlc account a
merket participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use ar by selling it to ancther market participant that would use the asset inits
highesi and best use,

The Council Lsas valuation techniquas thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient deta is available, maximising the usz of relevert cbhservable inputs and
minimising the use cf unckse~vable inputs.

Inputs to the voluotion technigues in respect of assets and liokilities for which fair vaue is
measurec of discicsad in the Council's financial ssatemenis are categerised within tna fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

* Level | - quoed orices (unadjusted) in actve markets for igenticcl cssets cr liabilities that
tne authority can access ot the meosurement date

* Level 2 -inputs olhar than cuoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, aither direcily or indircctiy

* Level 3 —unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.
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Report to: Audit Cemmittee

Date of Meeting: 3 July 2019

Subject: Assurance Framework and Code of Governance
Reporting Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager
(Including Job Title): | S §

Contact Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager

{Including Job Title):

Confirm hew this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

For decision For noting X
only
1.0 Purpose and Background:
1.1 The purpose is to explain to Members the key elements cf the ‘year-

end’ process and the 'assuranca framework’ that the Council has
recantly cevelcped tc nelp ensure that the Council complies with
statutory requirements arnd Members and senior officers can have
effective, ongoing aversight of the Council's governance and
assurance arrangements.

2.0 Key issues:

2.1 The Chairman has completed a self-assessment exercise on the
effectiveness of the Audit Committee on behalf of Elected Members, this
year using the upcated National Audit Office Self-Assessment Checklist
(Septamber 2017). The NAO checklist is the benchmark for best practica,
This was presented in January 2019, and one of the reccmmencations
was for Council to bring back a paper cn Assurance Mapping to the Aucit
Committee.

The Council's Assurance Framework is summarised at Appendix 1. It
shaws how different sources of assurance and related key elements /
control meaasures combine to enable the Council to monitor its
gcvernance arrangements and procuce the evidence to support its
Annual Governance Statement.

The diagram shows how the Courcil’'s Audit Committee, the Strategic
Palicy and Resources Committee and Council provide oversight of these
governance arrangements.

The Council has 2 statutory responsibility to annually prepare and
publish an Annual Governance Statement a< part of the Financial
Report. Many different processes inform the preparation of the
Statement as can be sean frem the Assurance Framework at Appendix
1.

Included within the Assurance 5Statement is the Councils Code of
Governance (Appendix 1). The CIPFTA Solace ‘'Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: A Framewoaork’ was issued in April




2016 and represents best practice for developing anc maintaining a
local code of governance and apolies to the Annual Governance
Statement.

NMEDC is commilted Lo Lhe principles of good govermnence and has
developed this Ccde of Governance toc cemonstrat2 this commitment.
This Code will be updated znd approved by tha Aucit Committee an an
annual basis.

3.0 ' Recommendations:
a1 The Committees is asked to
+ MNote the Council’s Assurance Framework {and also the Code of
Governance), illustrated and described at Appendix 1.
4.0 Resource implications
4.1 None
5.0 Equality and good relations implications
3.1 This report has been equality screened to assess the likely impact on
Lhe promolion ol egualily of opportunily and good relations. Mo egualily
impact assessment is required ar rhis rime.
6.0 Rural Proofing implications
6.1 A rural needs impact assessment is not required at this time.
7.0 Appendices
Appendix 1 - NMDEC Assurance Framewaork (including Code of
Governance)
8.0 Background Documents

None
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3.0 | Recommendations:

3.1 For consideration by the Audit Committee on & quartery basis.

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 None

5.0 Equality and good relations implications

5.1 This report has been equality screened to assess the likely impact on the
promotian of equality of opportunity and good relations. No equality impact
assessment is requirad at this time.

6.0 Rural Proofing implications

6.1 A rural needs Impact assessment |s not required at this tma.

7.0 Appendices
Appendix 1 - Corporate Risk Register Cover Sheet - July 2019
Appendix 2 - Corporate Risk Register - July 2019

8.0 Background Documents
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Report to:

Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 3 July 2019

Subject: Fraud and Whistleblowing
Reporting Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager
(Including Job Title): [ — §

Contact Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager

{Including Job Title):

Confirm hew this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

For decision For noting X
only
1.0 | Purpose and Background:
3 5 » To Notify the Audit Committee of 2ny suspected Fraud ard
Whistleblowing cases since the last meeting until the 28 June
2019,

» To Notify the Audit Committee of any cevelocpments from
previous Fraud and Whistleblowing Cases since the last meeting
until 2B June 2019.

2.0 Key issues:
21 * There have been no rew cases since the last Audit Committee.

» The 2018/19 NF| exercise has commenced. Council uploaded the
ragquired data to Treasury in October 2018. The matches report
has now been relsased.

» In total Council has 758 matches with 19 high priority (3C6 in
2016/17 with 26 high priority). All high priority matches will be
reviewed plus all matches which have a risk score of 75% or
above (in line with bast practice and what other Councils are
sampling).

» Audit Services Manager is currently working with Payroll,
Accounts Payable and Procurament teams to complete the
matches investigation work. I'he results of the matches
invastigation wark will be repcrtad to the September Committee.

3.0 Recommendations:

3.1 Fraud and Whistleblowing cases for consideration by the Audit
Commillee on a quarlerly basis.

4.0 Resource implications

4.1 None

5.0 Equality and good relations implications

5.1 This report has been equality screened Lo essess Lhe likely impacl on
the promotion of equality of opportunity and good relations. Mo equality
impact assessment is required at this time.

6.0 ' Rural Proofing implications




6.1

| A rural needs impact assessment is not required at thic tima.

7.0  Appendices
[ Appendix 1 - Summary Fraud and Whistleblowing regisler
B.O i Background Documents

MNone
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Report to: Audit Cemmittee

Date of Meeting: 3 July 2019

Subject: DAC / STA Register

Reporting Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager
{Including Job Title): \
Contact Officer David Barter, Pracurement Manager

(Including Job Title):

Confirm hcw this Report should be treated by placing an x in either:-

For decision For noting X
_only

1.0 . Purpose and Background:

2
Direct Award Contracts (DAC's) or Single Tender Actions (STA's) occur
when any partly or fully funded contract is awarded to a
contractor/supplier without a competiticn, or where there is a materia
change to an existing contract.
It is considared best practice to bring DACS ) STAs to the atrenrion of the
audit Committee.

2.0 | Key issues:

2.1 In the first quarter of the 2019/20 financial year, the Counc | awarded 16
contracts by way of Direct Award (with a value greatar than £5k). The
tozal value of these contracts was £244 ,610.

3.0 ' Recommendations:
AL For noting by the Audit Committee.
|
4.0 | Resource implications
4.1 None
5.0 Equality and good relations implications

5.1 This report has been eqguality screenad to assess the likely impact on
the promotion of equality of opportunity and gocd relations. No equality
impact assessment is required at this time.

6.0 “Rural Proofing implications

6.1 A rural needs impact assessment is not required at thic time.

7.0 Appendices -
Appendix 1: STA Report - 1% Quarter 2019/20

a.0 ' Background Documents

| None
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Report to: Audit Cemmittee

Date of Meeting: 3 July 2019

Subject: Update on Audit Recommendations
Reporting Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager
{Including Job Title): [ I
Contact Officer Gerard Byrne, Audit Services Manager

{Including Job Title):

Confirm how this Report shaould be treated by placing an x in either:-

For decision For noting X
anly
1.0 Purpose and Background:
1.1 At the Audit Committee meeting of 27 April 2017, it was agreed that the

Audit Committee would concentrate on monitoring internal audit
recommendations which have been made since NMDDC has formed
Therefore the detail below relates to recammendations realised in the
2015-16 and the 2016-17 financial years.

At the Audit Committee on the 26 S5eptember 2017, it was agreed trat the
Audit Committee would also review 2n update on NIAO recommendations.

Key issues:

=o

2015/16 recommendations have now been fully implemented with the
exception of three recommendations in relation to Off Street Car parking.
These recommendations cannot be implemented until the Agency
agreement with TransportNI ceases in Qctober 2022.

The table below cemonstrates a breakdown of the 2016/17 Audit
Recommendations by priority ~ating and their status. This was tabled at the
April 2018 Audit Committee.

April 2018
Fully Partizlly Not Supersed | No Tot
Implement | implement | implement | ed longer al
ed ed ad Arcepte
8
Priorit | O 1 0 ¥ 0 1
vl
Priorit | 6 14 7 4] ] 27
v 32
Priorit | 20 7 4 1 3 35
Y3
Tolal | 26 22 11 1 3 53




The lable below demonstrates the progress made Lo July 2019,

April 2019
Fully Partially Not Supersed No Total
Implement | implement | implement | ed longer
ed ed ed accepte
Priorit | O 0 a 1 0 1
v 1 |
Priorit | 11 7 o] ] 0 | 25
Y £
Priorit | 21 ) 3 3 3 37
y3
Total | 32 14 3 11 3 | B3

There is still a large number of 2016/17 recommendations outstanding. The

Audit Services manager will be making SMT and CMT aware of the
outstanding recommendations.

NIAO Recommendations

2016/17
Fully Partially Not N/ [ Notvet due [ Total
Implement | implement | implement | A | for
eg ed ed implementati
an
Priorit | 1 1 z
¥ 1
Prigrit | 2 2 4
vz
Total | 3 3 C 0 0 6
2017/18B
Fully Partially Mot N/ | Not vet due Total
Implement | implement | implement | A | for
ed ad ed implementati
an
Priorit 1 i}
y 1
Priorit | 2 1 3
Y2
Total 2 2 B 0 0 4

Recommendations:

Lad| Ld

Audit Committee members to note column headed “Status at July 20197 as
an indication of progress being made and actions being taken to address




recommendations as noted by management. A follow up of the 2017/18
recommendations (including TRU recommnecations) will be brought to the
September Audit Committee (Internal Audits follow up of these
recommendations was presented at the April 2019 Committee).

Resource implications

A number ot the recommendations contain significant rescurce implications,
both officer time and, in some cases capital cost.

Equality and good relations implications

This report has been equalily screened Lo assess Lhe | kely impact on the
promotion of equality of opportunity ard good relations. No equality impact
assessment is required at this time.

Rural Proofing implications

A rural neads impact assessment is not required at this time,

Appendices

Appendix 1: 2015/16 Follow up Lracker
Appendix 2: 2016/17 Follow up tracker
Appendix 3: NIAD recommendations

Background Documents
None
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